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2. CORPORATE STRUCTURE 

 

2.1 The full corporate name of the Issuer is "Oriental Non-Ferrous Resources Development 

Inc." (the “Issuer”).  The registered and head office of the Issuer is located at 5148 

Williams Road, Richmond, British Columbia, Canada V7E 1K1. 

2.2 The Issuer was incorporated under the Business Corporations Act of British Columbia on 

August 20, 2015. 

2.3 The Issuer has one wholly-owned subsidiary, Genuine Success Global Limited (“GSG”), 

a company incorporated on May 20, 2014 under the laws of British Virgin Islands. GSG 

owns 100% of Tunshan Xiangdong Co., Ltd. (“Tunshan”), a mineral exploration 

company incorporated on August 31, 2007 under the laws of Mongolia. 

2.4 There is no proposed fundamental change or proposed acquisition, amalgamation, 

merger, reorganization or arrangement. 

2.5 Not applicable.   

3. GENERAL DEVELOPMENT OF THE BUSINESS 

3.1 General Development of the Issuer's Business 

The Issuer is an exploration company.  Its activities consist of acquiring, exploring, 

developing, and, as the case may be, operating mining properties.  It is anticipated that 

the Issuer will be mainly active in the field of mining exploration in Mongolia and that a 

material part of the available funds of the Issuer will be used in exploration work on its 

mineral property.  

The Issuer does not presently operate a mine. 

Mineral exploration and development of mining properties will constitute the principal 

business of the Issuer for the coming years.  In the course of realizing its objectives, the 

Issuer will be called upon to enter into various agreements specific to the mining 

industry, such as purchase or option agreements to purchase mining claims and joint 

venture agreements. 

Through Tunshan, the Issuer owns Mongolian mineral exploration license with expiry 

date of July 31, 2017. The mineral properties are located in Kharganii am-1, Bornuur 

soum, Tuv aimag, Mongolia totalling 1,073 hectares.  Tunshan has also acquired mineral 

mining license with expiry date of September 5, 2044 covering 42.12 hectares of same 

areas in the mineral exploration license in Kharganii am-1, Bornuur soum, Tuv aimag, 

Mongolia. 

The Issuer commenced operations in August 2015 and is in the business of acquiring and 

exploring mineral resource properties in Mongolia and Canada. On September 10, 2015, 
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the Issuer acquired 100% of GSG by way of share exchange. Pursuant to the share 

exchange agreement between the Issuer, GSG, and the shareholders of GSG, the Issuer 

issued 75,000,000 shares of the Issuer to the shareholders of GSG. Mr. Youliang Wang, a 

Director of the Issuer, was also a major shareholder of GSG.  

GSG owns 100% of Tunshan that owns mineral exploration license with an expiry date of 

July 31, 2017. The mineral properties are located in Kharganii am-1, Bornuur soum, Tuv 

aimag, Mongolia totalling 1,073 hectares.  Tunshan has also acquired a mineral mining 

license with an expiry date of September 5, 2044, covering 42.12 hectares of the same 

areas under the mineral exploration license in Kharganii am-1, Bornuur soum, Tuv 

aimag, Mongolia. 

On September 23, 2015, the Issuer completed a non-brokered private placement of 

$635,625 at a price of $0.27 per share. A total of 2,354,167 shares of the Issuer were 

issued pursuant to the private placement subscription agreements.  

The Issuer’s focus is to explore for and locate economic mineral deposits in areas that are 

in proximity to existing and past producing mines and resource-based infrastructure. The 

Issuer’s objective is to partner or sell such deposits to a larger mining company for 

development and operation or, under certain conditions, carry the project to production. 

To date, the Issuer, through its wholly owned subsidiaries GSG and Tunshan, has 

acquired exploration licence XV-014091 and mining licence MV-017604, located at 

latitude 48°32’56” N and longitude 106°22’02” E (UTM WGS84 Zone 48U 600901 mE, 

5378212 mN), as set out in the table below: 

 

 Exploration license XV-

014091 

Mining license MV-017604 

Acquisition cost 2,000,000 Mongolian Tugrik 

(equivalent to $20,000 CAD) 

1,157,800 Mongolian Tugrik 

(equivalent to $800 CAD) 

Time of acquisition September 2, 2008 September 5, 2014 

Acquired from ITGELT HULEG Company in 

Mongolia 

Granted by the Geological 

Mining and Registration 

Office, Ulanbaatar, Mongolia 

Acquired from related 

party? No. No. 

Exploration licence XV-014091 has an area of 1,073 ha and was granted by the Mining 

Resource Authority of Mongolia on September 2, 2008, and is currently valid until July 

31, 2017. Mining licence MV-017604 was granted by the Geological Mining and 

Registration Office, Ulanbaatar, Mongolia, on September 5, 2014 and is valid for 30 

years. Mining licence MV-017604 is an irregular shape covering 42.12 ha and is located 

in the southwest corner of the exploration licence. The Issuer also intends to obtain and 

explore additional mineral properties of merit. 

The Issuer does not anticipate any changes to occur in its business during the current 

financial year. 
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3.2 The Issuer has not completed any significant acquisitions or dispositions during the year 

ended September 30, 2016. 

3.3 As an exploration company without revenues, the Issuer typically needs more capital than 

it has available to it or can expect to generate through the sale of its products. The Issuer 

will have to raise, by way of equity financing, funds to meet its capital needs. There is no 

guarantee that the Issuer will be able to continue to raise funds needed for its business. 

Failure to raise the necessary funds in a timely fashion will limit the Issuer’s growth. 

Risks are more fully set out below in section 17 Risk Factors. 

4. NARRATIVE DESCRIPTION OF THE BUSINESS 

4.1 General  

(1) The Issuer operates in one segment – the acquisition, exploration and development of 

mineral properties. The Issuer’s operations and assets are in Mongolia. 

Over the next 12-month period, the Issuer plans to secure additional funding necessary to 

continue exploration on its mining property and will continue to pursue new ventures or 

secure a new property with the intent of diversifying the commodity base and possibly 

the business base of the Issuer. 

(a) The Issuer intends to commence the recommended exploration work on the 

mining property that is outlined in the technical report titled ““Technical Report 

on the Kharganii Am-1 Molybdenum Property Tov Aimag, Mongolia, for 

Oriental Non-Ferrous Resources Development Inc., Latitude 48°32’56” N 

Longitude 106°22’02” E UTM WGS84 Zone 48U 600901 ME, 5378212 MN”, 

prepared by Yungang Wu, P.Geo., and R.H. Sutcliffe, Ph.D., P.Geo. of P&E 

Mining Consultants Inc.(“P&E”), dated effective December 8, 2015, prepared for 

the Issuer (the “Report”). 

P&E recommends that the Issuer continue to evaluate the Kharganii am-1 

Property with a two stage program.  The first phase should be to complete two in-

fill holes to test continuity of higher grade Mo mineralization, complete Mo-assay 

verification work and confirm an NI 43-101 resource estimate.  The second stage, 

contingent on the results of Phase 1, would be to complete initial metallurgical 

testwork and evaluate the preliminary economics of the molybdenum deposit.  

In view of the close spatial association of the property with several major gold 

deposits, P&E also recommends an evaluation of the property for gold 

mineralization as part of Phase 1. The Issuer should consider expanding the 

property position to the east to cover parts of the Devonian to Permian Zuunmod 

intrusive/extrusive complex and southeast to the Sujigtei fault zone.  

P&E’s recommended budget is US$459,000 to cover resource estimation, 

metallurgical testwork, a Preliminary Economic Assessment (PEA) on the 

Kharganii am-1 molybdenum deposit, two in-fill drill holes and a property wide 
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evaluation of potential gold targets including mapping, prospecting and IP 

geophysics. 

(b) A proposed $459,000 program is recommended. 

 

RECOMMENDED PROGRAM AND BUDGET 

Program Units 
Unit 

Cost ($) 
Budget 

In fill Drill holes  600 m $140/m 84,000 

Assays    25,000 

Complete NI43-101 Resource Estimation    25,000 

Geological mapping and prospecting    50,000 

IP Geophysics    25,000 

Subtotal Phase I   $209,000 

    

Review and complete initial metallurgical 

testwork 
  25,000 

Preliminary Economic Analysis (PEA)   225,000 

Subtotal Phase II   $250,000 

    

Total   $459,000 

(c) The total funds available to the Issuer as at the date of this Listing Statement is 

approximately $140,000 and is broken down as follows: 

i. The estimated working capital as of the most recent month prior to filing 

the Listing Statement was $15,000. 

ii. The total other funds, and the sources of such funds, available to be used 

to achieve the objectives and milestones set out in paragraphs (a) and (b) 

is minimal. In order to meet the Issuer’s business objectives, in whole or 

in part, funding may be supplemented by a private placement of securities 

of the Issuer for cash. 

On December 19, 2016, the Issuer closed a non-brokered private 

placement for 250,000 common shares of the Isuer at a price of $0.80 per 

Share for gross proceeds of $200,000. The Shares issued pursuant to the 

Offering are subject to a four (4) month hold period that expires on April 

20, 2017. Proceeds raised from the sale of the Shares will be used for 

claim maintenance fees, general property and geological review. 

(d)   

Description Amount 

Phase 1 exploration expenditure 
(1)

 $209,000 

Estimated general and administration expenses for 12 months
(2)

 $95,000 
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General working capital $30,000 

Total $334,000 

(1)
 See section 4.1 (a) above. 

(2)
 General and administrative expenses are estimated to be $7,917 per month. 

(2) Not applicable. 

(3) Not applicable. 

(4) See section 17 – Risk Factors. 

(5) Not applicable. 

(6) The Issuer has not been the subject of any bankruptcy or any receivership or similar 

proceedings against the Issuer or any voluntary bankruptcy, receivership or similar 

proceedings by the Issuer since its incorporation on August 20, 2015. 

(7) The Issuer was incorporated on August 20, 2015. Other than the acquisition of GSG 

on September 10, 2015, the Issuer has not completed a material restructuring 

transaction within the three most recently completed financial years, and does not 

intend to undertake or complete a material restructuring transaction during the 

current financial year. 

(8) There are no social or environmental policies necessary that are fundamental to the 

Issuer’s operations. 

4.2 Not applicable. 

4.3 Disclosure of Mineral Projects 

(1) Property Description and Location 

The Issuer’s Kharganii am-1 Molybdenum Property consists of exploration licence 

XV-014091 and mining licence MV-017604. The approximate center of Mining 

Licence MV-017604 is located at Latitude 48o32’56” N and Longitude 106o22’02” 

E (UTM WGS84 Zone 48U 600901 mE, 5378212 mN). The Property is located in 

the Bornuur sum (Bornuur district), in the Töv aimag (Central Province) of northern 

Mongolia. 

Exploration Licence XV-014091 was granted to Tunshan by the Mining Resource 

Authority of Mongolia (“MRAM”) on September 2, 2008, and is currently valid until 

July 31, 2017. Exploration Licence XV-014091 is a regular rectangle with an area of 

1,073 ha, defined by 4 corner points in Latitude and Longitude. 
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CORNER COORDINATES DEFINING KHARGANII AM-1 

EXPLORATION LICENCE XV-014091  

Corner  Latitude (N)  Longitude (E)  

1  48
o 

32’ 36.88”  106
o 

23’ 48.17”  

2  48
o 

32’ 36.88”  106
o 

21’ 51.18”  

3  48
o 

35’ 1.88”  106
o 

21’ 51.18”  

4  48
o 

35’ 1.88”  106
o 

23’ 48.19”  

Mining Licence MV-017604 was granted by the Geological Mining and Registration 

Office, Ulanbaatar, Mongolia on September 5, 2014 to Tunshan and is valid for 30 

years until September 5, 2044. Mining Licence MV-017604 is an irregular shape 

covering 42.12 ha defined by 29 corner points in Latitude and Longitude. 

 

CORNER COORDINATES DEFINING KHARGANI AM-1 

MINING LICENCE XV-014091 

Corner Latitude (N) Longitude (E) 

1 48°33’2.58” 106°22’31.76” 

2 48°32’57.38” 106°22’28.81” 

3 48°32’53.9” 106°22’25.25” 

4 48°32’53.22” 106°22’24.5” 

5 48°32’51.36” 106°22’20.24” 

6 48°33’50.71” 106°22’16.78” 

7 48°32’52.6” 106°22’12.94” 

8 48°32’55.46” 106°22’11.74” 

9 48°32’56.01” 106°22’07.99” 

10 48°32’54.46” 106°22’03.71” 

11 48°32’51.39” 106°22’02.6” 

12 48°32’49.11” 106°22’03.19” 

13 48°32’7.49” 106°22’04.29” 

14 48°32’45.46” 106°22’06.45” 

15 48°32’44.07” 106°22’08.25” 

16 48°32’41.26” 106°22’04.43” 

17 48°32’38.26” 106°22’10.9” 

18 48°32’36.88” 106°22’11.38” 

19 48°32’36.88” 106°21’51.18” 

20 48°32’54.46” 106°22’03.71” 

21 48°33’03.5” 106°22’54.05” 

22 48°33’05.15” 106°21’57.1” 

23 48°33’02.52” 106°22’08.16” 

24 48°33’02.29” 106°22’11.4” 

25 48°33’02.61” 106°22’12.81” 

26 48°33’03.54” 106°22’12.91” 
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27 48°33’06.01” 106°22’15.19” 

28 48°33’06.08” 106°22’25.95” 

29 48°33’03.67” 106°22’30.75” 

(2) Accessibility, Climate, Local Resources, Infrastructure and Physiography 

Access 

The Kharganii am-1 Property (“Kharganii Property” or “Property”) is located within 

the borders of the Töv aimag (Central Province) in the Bornuur sum (Bornuur 

district). The Property is 114 km northwest of Ulaanbaatar, the capital of Mongolia.  

The Property is 16 km north east of the Ulaanbaatar-Irkutsk (AH3) route that extends 

northwest from Ulaanbaatar through the town of Bayanchandmani (population 3,783 

in 2011), north toward the Boroo Gold Mine, and then continues north to Darkhan 

(population 74,700 in 2010) and the Russian border. The Kharganii Property is 24 

km southeast of the Boroo Gold Mine, owned by Centerra Gold. Numerous gravel 

roads and tracks extend from the main road route and enable access to the Property 

by 4 wheel drive vehicles in appropriate weather conditions.  

Road travel time from Ulaanbaatar to the property is approximately 3 hours. 

Ulanbaatar has the nearest airport that provides regular commercial air service to 

domestic and international centers.  

The Kharganii Property is 27 km west of the Trans Mongolian Railway that extends 

north from Ulaanbaatar through Zuunkharaa to Darkhan to Irkutsk in Russia. 

Climate 

North-central Mongolia is semi-arid with a continental climate. It is an area with 

significant seasonal and diurnal temperature variations. Winter temperatures are as 

low as -40°C while summer temperatures may exceed +40oC. The mean annual 

temperature is about 0°C, but there is no permafrost. The dry continental climate of 

northern Mongolia results in the region having more than 300 days of sunshine 

annually and only a light snow cover in winter. The area receives about 250 mm of 

precipitation per year, most as rain during the rainy season of July and August.  

Although the climate may present some challenges to heavy equipment operation, the 

Boroo mine and mill, located 25 km north of the Project operate effectively year 

round. Field exploration is most efficient during the months of March to November.  

Local Resources and Infrastructure 

Labour and services are available in Ulaanbaatar, the capital of Mongolia with a 

population of over 1.3 million (2014) inhabitants. Ulaanbaatar is a hub for roads, rail, 

and air travel.  
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The immediate Project area is sparsely populated, and inhabited mainly by nomadic 

herdsmen living in family camps on rural land or in small villages. The nearest towns 

are Bayanchandmani (population 3,783 in 2011 and 35 km southwest), Zuunkharaa 

(population 15,000 in 2004 and 30 km north-east) and Bornuur (13 km southwest). 

Zuunkharaa is served by the Trans-Mongolian railway that links Ulaanbaatar with 

Irkutsk and Beijing. This important rail link passes 28 km east of the Property.  

The Boroo Gold Mine, owned by Centerra Gold Inc., is located 24 km northwest of 

the Kharganii Property. The Boroo Mine demonstrates the area can support a full-

scale modern mining operation. Boroo began commercial production on March 1, 

2004, and mining was completed in September 2012, although stockpiled low grade 

ore was processed through December 2014. The Boroo deposit was mined using 

conventional open pit mining methods, using a standard ore processing flowsheet 

consisting of crushing, grinding, gravity concentration, cyanide leaching and gold 

recovery in a CIL circuit. The mill was designed with a capacity to process 1.8 

million tonnes of ore per year but achieved 2.1 million tonnes per year or 

approximately 6,840 tonnes per day. Following the cessation of mining in 2012, 

Boroo had a total of approximately 300 employees.  

Physiography   

The Project area is located in the Khentii Mountains, an area of moderately to steeply 

rolling hills. The hills are largely covered by grasslands but with small discontinuous 

forests of birch and alder trees on north facing slopes. Elevations on the Property 

range from approximately 1,050 m in the valleys to over 1,300 m on the ridge in the 

southern part of the licence. Higher peaks to a maximum of over 1,400 m are located 

north and east of the Project area.  

Water drainage is well developed, with abundant fresh water springs and rivers. The 

Project area drainage is to the west and north. The streams drain into the Boroo River, 

then to the Orkhon River, a tributary of the Selenge River that drains into Lake 

Baikal in Russia. 

(3) History 

No prior exploration history has been reported specifically for the Kharganii am-1 

Property. Regionally the area has been the subject of numerous prospecting and 

geological mapping surveys beginning in the early 1900’s. The Mongolor Company 

was active in the area starting in 1909 to 1920 and primarily involved in geographical 

surveys and exploration and mining of placer gold deposits. Active Russian 

geological surveys took place in 1950’s to 60’s at which time much of the geological 

framework was established.  

The delineation of the Boroo gold deposit commenced with prospecting activities 

between 1965 and 1969 that led to the recognition of Boroo’s potential as a bulk-

mineable gold deposit. A detailed field evaluation and reserve estimation was made 
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by a joint East German (DDR)- Mongolian (MPR) Geological Expedition from 1982 

to 1990. The Sujigtei gold deposit was also identified in the 1960’s and quantified by 

East German and Russian geological programs. Since 2000, Centerra Gold has been 

active in mineral exploration and development. 

(4) Geological Setting 

Regional Geology 

The following regional description of regional geology is largely summarized from 

the NI 43- 101 technical report on Centerra’s Gatsuurt Gold Project by Hendry et al. 

(2009). The Kharganii Property is located southwest of the Gatsuurt Project on the 

same structural trends.  

The Khargaii Property is situated in the North Khentii gold belt and north east 

trending North Khentii tectonic belt of northcentral Mongolia (Figure 7.1). The 

North Khentii tectonic belt is bounded to the northwest and southeast respectively by 

the Bayangol and Yeroogol/Sujigtei fault systems. The tectonic belt is composed of 

metasedimentary and metavolcanic rocks and associated intrusions that were 

accreted onto the southeastern margin of the Siberian Craton during Paleozoic 

orogenic events.  

The North Khentii belt is dominated by three major lithotectonic components. The 

oldest rocks are Late Precambrian to Early Paleozoic flysch sequences of the Yeroo 

and Kharaa series that have been intruded by Early Paleozoic (520 to 450 Ma) 

orogenic granitoid complexes, such as the Baroo complex. These rock units are 

unconformably overlain by Mid- to Upper-Permian continental volcanic rocks, 

sedimentary rocks and associated intrusive rocks that that are spatially associated 

with the Yeroogol/Sujigtei fault system. The youngest rock units are Jurassic to 

Cretaceous and Tertiary coal-bearing sedimentary rocks.  

The Bayangol and Yeroogol/Sujigtei fault systems trend northeast-southwest and are 

interpreted to be strike-slip fault zones with sinistral (left-lateral) displacement. 

These fault systems are regional extent, and together with associated volcanism and 

magmatism, are interpreted as deep- seated fracture systems that have a major 

controlling influence on district scale mineralization.  

The North Khentii gold belt has a long history of mining both alluvial placer and 

bedrock gold deposits. Placer districts and associated gold and arsenic anomalies in 

stream sediments are broadly focused on the Bayangol and Sujigtei fault systems. 

Bedrock gold deposits within the trend include the Boroo mine, Gatsuurt deposit, 

Ereen deposit and the Sujigtei deposit. The North Khentei gold belt deposits and 

occurrences are typically mesothermal deposits and may comprise individual quartz 

veins with coarse gold and low-sulphide content, as well as disseminated fine gold in 

pyritic host rocks.  



11 

Local Geology 

The following description of local geology is primarily based on a report by Tunshan 

Xiangdong LLC (2013), supplemented by the 1:1,000,000 Geological Map of 

Mongolia (1998), and a 1;50,000 scale geological map provided by Tunshan. 

Metasedimentary Rocks of the Kharaa Series 

The Kharganii am-1 Project area is primarily underlain by deformed Paleozoic 

metasediments of the Kharaa Series. The Kharaa metasediments are a relatively 

uniform sequence of marine flysch-type deposits of sandstone, greywacke, siltstone 

and slate. The rocks have been assigned to the Middle Cambrian to Lower 

Ordovician based on regional relationships.  

The lower metasediments of the Kharaa Series are mainly composed of thinly 

(centimeter scale) bedded sandstone and pelitic schist or locally siltstone with 

sandstone predominate. The upper Kharaa Series meta-sediments are more thickly 

(decimeter to meter scale) bedded sandstone and pelitic schist with higher 

proportions of pelitic schist.  

On the licence area, the Kharaa Series metasediments are northeast striking and dip 

40
o 

to 70
o 

to the northwest. The metasediments are characterised by greenschist 

facies regional metamorphism with extensive hydrothermal metasomatic alteration. 

In the vicinity of the intrusive rocks, metamorphism and metasomatic alteration is 

most strongly developed with quartz-cordierite-biotite and quartz-cordierite-

plagioclase assemblages. Quartz veinlets, secondary quartzite, carbonate and epidote 

are associated with hydrothermal metasomatic alteration. Quartz-sericite-pyrite-

carbonate alteration (locally known as beresite alteration) of metasediments is 

associated with the area of the intrusive contact.  

Based on petrographic studies, the sandstones are composed of 35-60% quartz, 30-

55% feldspar, with 5-10% silicified and other rock fragments. The matrix contains 

carbonate and with metamorphism and alteration becomes sericite, chlorite, biotite, 

actinolite and epidote. Accessory phases include magnetite, sphene, apatite, 

tourmaline, zircon, garnet and monazite. Psephitic rocks (conglomerates) contain 

rounded grains of quartz, siltstone, plagioclase, dacite, micro- schist, and granitic 

aplite. Pelitic rocks are composed of quartz, feldspar, with sericite, chlorite, 

muscovite, biotite, epidote, carbonate and tourmaline.  

Intrusive Rocks 

Early to Middle Ordovician intrusive rocks of the Baroo group include gabbro, 

diorite, quartz diorite, plagiogranite and granite. Baroo intrusive rocks are present 

throughout the region but are well-developed at the Baroo mine to the north.  
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Immediately east of the Project area, the Early Devonian felsic intrusive volcanic 

complex known as the Zuun Mod Complex intrudes the Kharraa metasediments. In 

this area the 1:50 000 geological map identifies rhyolitic monzonite and locally 

adamellite intrusive phases. Early Devonian pegmatite and megacrystic syenogranite 

dikes related to the Complex locally intrude the Kharaa Series metasediment 

sediments on the licence area.  

Quaternary Sediments 

Quaternary sediments are widely distributed in the licence area and range from thin 

cover on mountain slopes to thick (20 to 60 m) accumulations in the valleys. Recent 

alluvial sediments are mined for placer gold in the district. The area has not been 

glaciated.  

Deposit Geology 

The licence area contains occurrences of gold, copper, molybdenum, tungsten, silver 

and arsenic. Tunshan has identified an area of significant molybdenum 

mineralization in the southwest corner of the Kharganii am-1 Property. The 

mineralization occurs as a series of over 20 parallel veins (or lodes) striking at 060
o 

over a 700 m strike length. The veins dip northwest at approximately 45
o 

and the 

mineralization plunges northeast. The mineralization is open to the north, but limited 

to the west by the Property boundary.  

Tunshan interprets the molybendum bearing veins to be associated with a northwest 

dipping shear zone. A series of parallel veins has been interpreted based on 

connecting quartz veins with associated alteration and molybdenum mineralization.  

The molybdenum mineralization on the Khargnii Property includes vein and breccia 

mineralization types, with the former being predominant. As the mineralized veins 

are interpreted to be parallel to structural fabrics in the Kharaa metasediments and to 

have formed contemporaneously with these metamorphic fabrics, the mineralization 

is interpreted by Tunshan to be of Early Paleozoic age (Middle Cambrian to Late 

Ordovician). This is older than the gold mineralization which formed in the 

Mesozoic (Jurassic to Triassic).  

(5) Exploration Information 

All of the exploration on the Property was completed by Tunshan, an indirectly 

wholly owned subsidiary of the Issuer, prior to the Issuer’s acquisition of Tunshan. 

Geological Mapping and Geophysics 

Since acquiring the licence in 2008, Tunshan has completed 1:10,000 scale 

geological mapping over the licence area using GPS control, ground magnetic 

surveys using a DGPS-GSM-19T proton magnetometer with integrated GPS, and 
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polarization gradient surveys. Geophysical surveys have been augmented with 

physical properties including resistivity. P&E has not reviewed copies of the 

geological or ground magnetic maps.  

Tunshan has completed two IP profiles of 800 m length at 100 m spacing over the 

area of Mo mineralization. These profiles have assisted in targeting extensions of the 

mineralization at depth.  

Exploration work completed in 2013 and 2014 are tabulated in the table below.  

 

EXPLORATION WORK PROGRAM OF KHARGANII 

Year Tasks Completed Work 

2013 Topograph Survey 2.11 km
2
 

Diamond Drilling 4045 m / 12 drill holes 

Whole Rock Chemistry Assay 10 

Mineralization phase analysis 14 

Assay 988 

2014 IP survey 7.2 km 

Diamond Drilling 4571 km / 7 drill holes 

Assay 2221 

Compositing Assay 12 

Petrography Test 29 

(6) Mineralization 

Tunshan has excavated a total of approximately 15 trenches, oriented at 330o, from 9 

to 16 m long to a maximum depth of 0.8 to 1.5 m, to define the extent of surface 

mineralization. Trenches have been excavated both mechanically and manually. 

Trenches were channel sampled with 5 to 10 cm wide channels cut by hammer and 

chisel at the bottom of the trench.  

Assays of the mineralized channel samples from the trenches are lower in Mo grade 

than mineralized rocks from drill core. Only one trench sample assayed greater than 

0.05% Mo. The lower grades are attributed to weathering and oxidation in the near 

surface environment. 

(7) Drilling 

All of the drilling on the Property was completed by Tunshan, an indirectly wholly 

owned subsidiary of the Issuer, prior to the Issuer’s acquisition of Tunshan. To date, 

the Issuer has not completed any drilling on the Property. 

Tunshan 2008 to 2014 Program 

Mongolia Zheng Yuan Ltd, retained by Tunshan Xiangdong, has drilled 29 holes 

from 2008 to 2014 for a total of 11,631.1 m. Drilling was done by Chinese made 
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XY-4 exploration core drilling rigs capable of 1,000 m depth with 42 mm diameter 

drill rods.   

At Kharganii am, 91 mm is the primary drill diameter utilized with a final diameter 

of 75 mm corresponding approximately to HQ and NQ core sizes. Core is boxed, 

intervals marked with wood chips, numbered, sealed, and then transported for 

sampling. 

Down hole surveys to measure azimuth and inclination are taken every 50 down hole. 

Most holes achieved over 98% recovery with the exception of hole ZK8-1 which 

achieved 86%. Holes are sealed with cement and numbered after drilling is 

completed.  

Most holes were drilled with a near vertical orientation (800-900). The deepest hole 

has drilled to 850 m and the deepest intersection to date was 522 to 615 m in hole 

ZK11-06 that was drilled in 2014.  

The drill database contains approximately 3,500 assays for Mo. Assay intervals were 

nominally 1.0 m in length. Significant drill intersections are listed in table 10.1. The 

intersections in this table were based on selecting typical intersections with widths 

greater than 2.5 m and greater than 0.05% Mo. Many of these intersections contain 

narrower intervals in excess of 0.5% Mo. Many holes have multiple intersections.  

 

SELECTED SIGNIFICANT DRILL INTERSECTIONS 

KHARGANII AM-1 MO PROJECT 

Hole 

Number 

Latitude N Longitude E From (m) To (m) Width (m) Mo (%) 

ZK3 48°32’46.8” 106°22’15.9” 158.00 164.00 6.00 0.275 

including   162.00 164.00 2.00 0.588 

and   178.00 180.50 2.50 0.572 

and   207.10 212.30 5.20 0.339 

ZK4-1 48°32’45.6” 106°22’11.5” 186.90 191.30 4.40 0.434 

including   189.40 190.40 1.00 1.28 

ZK0-1 48°32’48.2” 106°22’14.6” 146.70 150.60 3.90 0.365 

including   149.20 150.60 1.40 0.800 

ZK3-3 48°32’50.9” 106°22’18.1” 233.90 243.40 9.50 0.193 

including   241.40 242.40 1.00 0.620 

ZK7-3 48°32’52.2” 106°22’20.4” 250.10 257.60 7.50 0.267 

including   255.60 256.60 1.00 0.810 

and   322.90 331.90 9.00 0.197 

ZK11-3 48°32’55.8” 106°22’25.6” 271.80 276.80 5.00 0.428 

and   283.40 289.40 6.00 0.294 

ZK11-4 48°32’58.4” 106°22’23.5” 107.30 112.30 5.00 0.308 

including   108.30 109.30 1.00 0.850 

and   237.40 241.70 4.30 0.284 
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and   252.70 258.70 6.00 0.270 

including   253.70 254.70 1.00 0.660 

ZK7-4 48°32’57.1” 106°22’19.2” 468.50 475.10 6.60 0.340 

including   474.10 475.10 1.00 0.800 

and   480.00 483.00 3.00 0.390 

ZK7-5 48°33’00.3” 106°22’17.0” 340.80 343.90 3.10 0.448 

including   342.90 343.90 1.00 0.860 

ZK15-5 48°33’03.7” 106°22’25.2” 529.70 535.70 6.00 0.262 

including   532.70 533.70 1.00 0.700 

ZK11-6 48°33’08.0” 106°22’16.4” 590.70 596.90 6.20 0.273 

including   594.70 595.90 1.20 0.760 

ZK11-7 48°33’09.2” 106°22’15.3” 178.80 183.60 4.80 0.464 

including   178.80 181.60 2.80 0.612 

and   307.80 313.30 5.50 0.291 

including   310.30 311.30 1.00 0.625 

and   342.60 364.90 22.30 0.152 

and   369.40 388.10 18.70 0.216 

including   386.10 388.10 2.00 0.562 

Note: All drill holes are vertical. Intersections reported in the Table 10.1 are not true widths. 

The intersections reflect vertical holes drilled through mineralized structures dipping 45
o 

to the 

west. 

(8) Sampling and Analysis 

All drill core logging and sample preparation was conducted by geologists of the 

contractor Mongolian Zheng Yuan Ltd. (Zheng Yuan) at drilling site for Tunshan, an 

indirectly wholly owned subsidiary of the Issuer, prior to the Issuer’s acquisition of 

Tunshan.  

3,501 drill core samples and 29 trench channel rib samples were collected. The 

trench channel rib samples were collected along the trench wall. The NQ-sized drill 

core was split in half using a rock saw and one-half of the drill core was kept in the 

core tray for reference purposes and the other half core was individually bagged, 

tagged, sealed and packed in large nylon bags. Drill core sample length varied from 

0.4 m to 1.9 m, and more than 84% of core sample length was 1m. Samples were 

trucked by Tunshan personnel to the Research and Testing Center, Darkhan 

Metallurgical Plant JSC, Darkhan, Mongolia (DMP) for sample preparation and 

analysis. A sample registration form was completed and a copy sent along with the 

samples to the laboratory.  

It is P&E’s opinion that the trench and core sampling are representative and reflect 

current industry standards.  

(9) Security of Samples 
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All samples were analyzed for Molybdenum (Mo), and 1,193 samples collected in 

2014 were determined for copper analyses as well, using XRF Spectroscopy 

elemental analysis method. The DMP laboratory has analysis related certificate of 

ISO/IEC 17025:25 (MNS ISO/IEC 17025:2007) and ISO-9001:2008 / MNS ISO 

9001:2010 certificate from the Mongolian Agency for Standardization and 

Metrology. It is P&E’s belief that the laboratory has nothing other than a 

client/supplier relationship with the client.  

Following the independent QP site visit by Mr. Wu of P&E in June 2014, Tunshan’s 

QA/QC program consisted of inserting a certified reference material (CRM or 

standard) and blank at a rate of approximately 1 standard or blank for every 20 

samples. In addition, field duplicates consisting of ¼ core were collected every 20 

samples. Standard and blanks were not utilized for the samples collected from the 

2008 to 2013 drilling programs; however, approximately 5% of samples were 

selected by Tunshan for internal and external auditing assays. 

(10) No mineral resource estimation has been carried out on the Property. 

(11) Not applicable. 

(12) Phase 1 of the proposed exploration program would be carried out once additional 

funding is available. 

4.4 Not applicable. 

5. SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL INFORMATION 

5.1 The following table summarizes financial data for the Issuer in summary form for each of 

the last two completed financial years as the Issuer was incorporated on August 20, 2015: 

  Year ended 

September 30, 2016 

Year ended 

September 30, 2015 

Total revenue Nil  Nil 

Income from continuing 

operations 

Nil Nil 

Net loss $(2,382,837) $(199,582) 

Net loss per share $(0.03) $(0.00) 

Total assets $1,941,282 $2,437,821 

Long term liabilities Nil Nil 

Cash dividends Nil Nil 

5.2 The following table sets out selected unaudited quarterly financial information of the 

Issuer for the last eight quarters of operation. This information is derived from unaudited 

quarterly financial statements prepared by management. The Issuer’s interim financial 

statements are prepared in accordance with IFRS and expressed in Canadian dollars. 
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  For the quarters ended 

  
September 30, 

2016 

June 30, 

2016 

March 31, 

2016 

December 31, 

2015 

Net loss $45,906 $2,022,763 $197,655 $116,513 

Basic and diluted loss per share $(0.00) $(0.03) $(0.00) $(0.00) 

Weighted average number of common     

shares outstanding - basic and diluted 77,354,167 77,354,167 77,354,167 77,354,167 

     
  For the quarters ended 

  
September 30, 

2015 

June 30, 

2015 

March 31, 

2015 

December 31, 

2014 

Net loss $93,769 $75,579 $7,134 $23,100 

Basic and diluted loss per share $(0.00) $(0.00) $(0.00) $(0.00) 

Weighted average number of common     

shares outstanding - basic and diluted 75,204,710 75,000,000 75,000,000 75,000,000 

As the Issuer had been seeking a listing on the Exchange, the Issuer incurred additional 

expenses including professional fees in the quarters ended March 31, 2016, December 31, 

2015, and September 30, 2015. 

The significant loss incurred in the quarter ended June 30, 2016 was due to the 

recognition of share-based payment of $1,864,010, which is the fair market value of 

options granted to directors and officers of the Issuer. The share-based payment is a one-

time non-cash item. 

The Issuer has no dividend policy and has no intention of developing a dividend policy in 

the foreseeable future. The Issuer has paid no dividends and has no retained earnings 

from which it might pay dividends 

5.3 There are no restrictions that could prevent the Issuer from paying dividends; however, it 

is unlikely the Issuer will pay dividends.  Future dividends, if any, will be determined by 

the directors on the basis of earnings, financial requirements and other conditions existing 

at the time. 

5.4 Not applicable. 

6. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

6.1 Management's Discussion and Analysis 

Management's Discussion and Analysis of the Issuer for the year ended September 30, 

2016 is attached to this Listing Statement as Schedule B.   
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7. MARKET FOR SECURITIES 

7.1 The Issuer’s common shares are listed for trading on the CSE under stock symbol URG.   

8. CONSOLIDATED CAPITALIZATION 

8.1 There has been no material change in, and the effect of the material change on, the share 

capital of the Issuer, on a consolidated basis, since the date of the audited financial 

statements as at September 30, 2016. 

9. OPTIONS TO PURCHASE SECURITIES 

9.1 Stock Option Plan – Issuer 

Options granted pursuant to the Issuer's stock option plan (the "Plan") will not exceed a 

term of ten years and are granted at an option price and on other terms which the directors 

determine is necessary to achieve the goal of the Plan and in accordance with regulatory 

policies.  The option price may be at a discount to the prevailing market price, which 

discount will not, in any event, exceed that permitted by any stock exchange on which 

Issuer's Common Shares are listed for trading. 

 
Optionees Number of 

options 

Exercise 

Price 

Market Value on 

Date of Grant 
Expiry Date 

Directors and Officers 5,000,000 $0.375 $0.375 June 13, 2026 

Outstanding as at 

September 30, 2016 5,000,000 
   

10. DESCRIPTION OF THE SECURITIES 

10.1 Description of the Issuer's Securities 

Under the Articles of the Issuer, the Issuer is authorized to issue unlimited common 

shares with no par value. 

All of the common shares of the Issuer rank equally as to voting rights, participation in a 

distribution of the assets of the Issuer on a liquidation, dissolution or winding-up of the 

Issuer and the entitlement to dividends. The holders of the common shares are entitled to 

receive notice of all meetings of shareholders and to attend and vote the shares at the 

meetings. Each common share carries with it the right to one vote. 

In the event of the liquidation, dissolution or winding-up of the Issuer or other 

distribution of its assets, the holders of the common shares will be entitled to receive, on 

a pro rata basis, all of the assets remaining after the Issuer has paid out its liabilities. 

Distribution in the form of dividends, if any, will be set by the board of directors. 

The Issuer may redeem its shares in accordance with the applicable corporate law in 

British Columbia.  
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10.2 Debt Securities 

Not applicable. 

10.4 Other Securities 

Not applicable. 

10.5 Modification of terms 

Not applicable. 

10.6 Other attributes 

Not applicable. 

10.7 Prior Sales  

Not applicable. 

10.8 Stock Exchange Price 

The following is a summary of the high and low price ranges and volume traded on the 

CSE for the 12-month period before the date of this Listing Statement. 

 

 High Low Close Volume 

December, 2016 $0.70 $0.70 $0.70 500 

November, 2016 $0.79 $0.76 $0.76 6,600 

October, 2016 $0.90 $0.79 $0.79 16,500 

September, 2016 $0.86 $0.80 $0.86 26,100 

August, 2016 $0.82 $0.52 $0.82 67,000 

July, 2016 $0.57 $0.39 $0.54 178,800 

June, 2016 $0.395 $0.305 $0.39 288,700 

May, 2016 No trade No trade No trade No trade 

April, 2016 No trade No trade No trade No trade 

March, 2016 No trade No trade No trade No trade 

11. ESCROWED SECURITIES 

11.1 Escrowed Securities  

    Designation of class 

held in escrow 

 

Number of securities 

held in escrow 

Percentage of 

class 
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Common Shares 31,950,000 41.17%  

12. PRINCIPAL SHAREHOLDERS 

12.1 Principal Shareholders 

As of the date of this Listing Statement, the security holders of the Issuer who is known 

to own, directly or indirectly, or exercise control or direction over voting securities 

carrying more than 10% of the voting rights attached to any class of voting securities of 

the Issuer are listed below. 

 

 

  Name 

 

Number of equity 

securities owned, 

directly or indirectly 

percentages of each 

class of securities 

Ownership type 

Youliang Wang 36,337,500 46.8% Beneficially 

Zhengxi Liu 14,250,000 18.4% Beneficially 

13. DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS 

13.1 Directors and Officers 

List the name and municipality of residence of each director and executive officer of the 

Issuer and indicate their respective positions and offices held with the Issuer and their 

respective principal occupations within the five preceding years. 

Name, Address, Occupation and Security Holdings 

 

Name and place of residence(1) 

 

Principal occupation 

 

Director since 

 

Number of 

shares(2) 

 

Number of 

Convertible 

Securities 

Eugene Beukman(3)(4)(5) 

North Vancouver, B.C.  

President, Chief Executive Officer 
and Director 

Corporate consultant to public companies since 

January 1994; director and/or officer of several 

reporting companies listed on the TSX Venture 
Exchange and the Canadian Securities Exchange; 

President/owner of Pender Street Corporate 

Consulting since 2006. 

October 2, 2015 Nil 1,000,000 

options 

Youliang Wang(3)(4) 

Beijing China 

Director 
 

 

Chief Executive Officer & Executive Director of 

China Modern Agricultural Information, Inc. and 

CEO, General Manager & Director of Heilongjiang 
Zhongxian Information Co. Ltd.  Director of 

Oriental Non-Ferrous Resources Development Inc., 

Director of Wonhe High-Tech International, Inc., 
China Modern Agricultural Information, Inc., and 

Heilongjiang Zhongxian Information Co. Ltd.  

Previously employed as Vice President by Guofa 
Venture Investment Co. Ltd., Chief Marketing 

Officer of YunnanNanyao Jiaoxiong Pharmaceutical 

Co. Ltd., President of Tonghua Hongyuan Trading 
Co. Ltd., and Chief Executive Officer & Director of 

Trade Link Wholesalers, Inc. 

October 2, 2015 36,337,500 

(46.8%) 

1,000,000 

options 

Paul Chung(3) 

Director, 

Mr. Paul Chung is President, Chief Executive 
Officer, Director of Red Pine Petroleum Ltd. Mr. 

Chung has been a director of TNR Gold Corp. since 

October 2, 2015 Nil 1,000,000 
options 
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Name and place of residence(1) 

 

Principal occupation 

 

Director since 

 

Number of 

shares(2) 

 

Number of 

Convertible 

Securities 

Vancouver, Canada 
1994 and has also held the position of Secretary 

from 1996 to present. In addition, Mr. Chung has 

been a director of 92 Resources Corp. since 
September 2009. He has approximately 20 years of 

professional experience in the management of 

public companies. Mr. Chung is the President of 
BOA Services Ltd., a private consulting company, 

and holds a B.Sc from University of British 

Columbia and Master of Business Administration 
from University of Athabasca in Alberta and is a 

Fellow with the Geological Association of Canada. 

Sam Wang 

CPA, CGA, MBA 

Vancouver, B.C. 

Director, Chief Financial Officer 

and Corporate Secretary 

Served as a director and chief financial officer of 
many public companies listed on Canadian stock 

exchanges since 2006. Director of Eastern Platinum 

Limited since July 5, 2016. Director and Chief 

Financial Officer of Bard Ventures Ltd. since 

August 2015. Chief Financial Officer of 3TL 

Technologies Corp. since July 2015. Chief Financial 
Officer of Jiulian Resources Inc. since April 2013. 

Director and Chief Financial Officer of Sino Rise 

Group Holding Corp. since September 2012. 
Director and Chief Financial Officer of MillenMin 

Ventures Inc. from September 2009 to August 2015. 

Director of EPI Environmental Technologies Inc. 
from August 2011 to October 2013. Director of 

Xianburg Data Systems Canada Corporation from 

November 2010 to April 2011. Director, Chief 
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer of 

Genius World Investments Limited from December 

2007 to September 2012.  He is the founder and 
president of Canadian Regal International Finance 

Inc., a private business consulting firm based in 

Vancouver, B.C. Canada. 

October 2, 2015 Nil 1,000,000 
options 

 

 

Notes: 
(1) The information as to residence, present principal occupation, business or employment, and the number of Common shares 

beneficially owned or controlled has been furnished by the respective nominees. 
(2) Percentage is based on 77,604,167 common shares issued. 
(3) Member of the Audit Committee. Mr. Eugene Beukman is the Chair of the Audit Committee. 
(4) Best Path Developments Limited, a company 95% owned and controlled by Wang Youliang, owns 38,250,000 common shares of the 

Issuer. As a beneficiary shareholder, through Best Path Developments Limited, Mr. Wang owns 36,337,500 shares of the Issuer. 

13.2 Each of the directors will elected by the Issuer's shareholders at an annual general meeting 

of shareholders to serve until the next annual general meeting of shareholders or until a successor 

is elected or appointed. 

 

Director Period served as a Director 

Eugene Beukman October 2, 2015 to date 

Sam Wang October 2, 2015 to date 

Youliang Wang October 2, 2015 to date 

Paul Chung October 2, 2015 to date 

13.3 As at the date of this Updated Listing Statement, the directors and officers of the Issuer, 

beneficially owned, directly or indirectly, 36,337,500 common shares representing 46.8% of all 

outstanding voting securities of the Issuer. 
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13.4 The audit committee of the Issuer has the following members: Eugene Beukman, Paul 

Chung, and Youliang Wang.  

13.5 The principal occupation of the directors and officers of the Issuer is disclosed below in 

Section 13.11 – Management. 

13.6  Except as summarized below, to the knowledge of the Issuer, none of the Issuer’s directors, 

officers or principal shareholders are, or have been within the last 10 years, directors or officers 

of any other issuer that, while that person was acting in that capacity, was the subject of a cease 

trade or similar order or an order that denied the issuer access to any statutory exemptions for a 

period of more than 30 consecutive days or became bankrupt, made a proposal under any 

legislation relating to bankruptcy or insolvency or was subject to or instituted any proceedings, 

arrangement or compromise with creditors or had a receiver, receiver manager or trustee 

appointed to hold the assets of that issuer. 

13.7  To the knowledge of the Issuer, none of the Issuer’s directors, officers or principal 

shareholders are, or have been within the last 10 years, the subject of any penalties or sanctions 

imposed by a court relating to Canadian securities legislation or by a Canadian securities 

regulatory authority or has entered into a settlement agreement with a Canadian securities 

regulatory authority or been subject to any other penalties or sanctions imposed by a court or 

regulatory body that would be likely to be considered important to a reasonable investor making 

an investment decision. 

13.8  Not applicable. 

13.9 To the knowledge of the Issuer, none of the Issuer’s directors, officers or principal 

shareholders, or any personal holding company of such persons, has, within the last 10 years, 

become bankrupt or made a proposal under any legislation relating to bankruptcy or insolvency 

or been subject to or instituted any proceedings, arrangement or compromise with creditors or 

had a receiver, receiver manager or trustee appointed to hold his, her or its assets. 

13.10  There are no existing or potential material conflicts of interest to the best knowledge of 

the Issuer. 

13.11 Management 

The following are brief biographical descriptions of the management of the Issuer.   

Eugene Beukman, Chief Executive Officer and President 

Mr. Beukman, age 58, has been a director of the Issuer since October 2, 2015. He will 

provide leadership and direction to the board of the Issuer. Mr. Beukman has been a 

management consultant to public companies since January 1994. Mr. Beukman holds a 

post-graduate degree in law from Rand University (Johannesburg) and is an Advocate of 

the Supreme Court of South Africa. Since 2007, Mr. Beukman has been the President and 

a director of Pender Street Corporate Consulting Ltd., a private company wholly-owned 

by Mr. Beukman, involved in the organization and management of a number of reporting 
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and non-reporting companies. In addition, Mr. Beukman serves or has served as a director 

or officer of various companies trading on the TSXV and CSE, including, among others: 

Bard Ventures Ltd. (TSXV:CBS) (since February 1996) and Range Energy Resources 

Inc.(CSE:RGO) (since September 2012). Mr. Beukman intends to devote approximately 

20% of his working time to the affairs of the Issuer. 

Mr. Beukman has not entered into a non-competition or a non-disclosure agreement with 

the Issuer. 

Sam Wang, Chief Financial Officer and Corporate Secretary 

Mr. Wang, age 47, is the Chief Financial Officer, Corporate Secretary and a Director of 

the Issuer.  Mr. Wang is a results oriented senior executive who brings a broad expertise 

in all phases of corporate finance, business and strategic planning, corporate 

development, financial management and reporting, and regulatory reporting.  

Mr. Wang is a CPA, CGA with an MBA degree from York University in Toronto.  Mr. 

Wang has served as a director and chief financial officer of many public companies listed 

on Canadian stock exchanges including Eastern Platinum Limited, Bard Ventures Ltd., 

3TL Technologies Corp., and Jiulian Resources Inc. He is the founder and president of 

Canadian Regal International Finance Inc., a private business consulting firm based in 

Vancouver, Canada. Mr. Wang intends to devote approximately 50% of his working time 

to the affairs of the Issuer. 

Mr. Wang has not entered into a non-competition or a non-disclosure agreement with the 

Issuer. 

14. CAPITALIZATION 

14.1 The following chart is for each class of securities to be listed as of the date of this Listing 

Statement: 

 
 Number of 

Securities 

(non-diluted) 

Number of 

Securities 

(fully-diluted) 

% of 

Issued 

(non- 

diluted) 

% of 

Issued 

(fully  

diluted) 

Public Float     

Total outstanding (A) 77,604,167 82,604,167 100% 100% 

     

     

Held by Related Persons or 

employees of the Issuer or Related 

Person of the Issuer, or by persons or 

companies who beneficially own or 

50,587,500 55,587,500 65% 67% 
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 Number of 

Securities 

(non-diluted) 

Number of 

Securities 

(fully-diluted) 

% of 

Issued 

(non- 

diluted) 

% of 

Issued 

(fully  

diluted) 

control, directly or indirectly, more 

than a 5% voting position in the 

Issuer (or who would control, directly 

or indirectly, more than a 5% voting 

position in the Issuer upon exercise or 

conversion of other securities held) 

(B) 

    

    

    

    

Total Public Float (A-B) 27,016,667 27,016,667 35% 33% 

Freely-Tradeable Float     

Number of outstanding securities 

subject to resale restrictions, 

including restrictions imposed by 

pooling or other arrangements or in a 

shareholder agreement and securities 

held by control block holders (C) 

nil nil 0% 0% 

Total Tradeable Float (A-C) 77,604,167 82,604,167 100% 100% 

Public Securityholders (Registered) 

Class of Security – Common Shares 

Size of Holding Number of holders  Total number of securities 

1 - 99 securities    

100 - 499 securities    

500 - 999 securities    

1,000 - 1,999 securities 149  1,490,000 

2,000 - 2,999 securities    

3,000 - 3,999 securities    

4,000 - 4,999 securities    

5,000 or more securities 2  2,694,592 

Public Securityholders (Beneficial) 
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Class of Security – Common Shares 

Class of Security    

Size of Holding Number of holders  Total number of securities 

1 - 99 securities    

100 - 499 securities    

500 - 999 securities    

1,000 - 1,999 securities 
 

 
 

2,000 - 2,999 securities 
 

 
 

3,000 - 3,999 securities 
 

 
 

4,000 - 4,999 securities 
 

 
 

5,000 or more securities 
 

 
 

Unable to confirm   292,100 

Non-Public Securityholders (Registered) 

Instruction: For the purposes of this report, "non-public securityholders" are persons enumerated in 

section (B) of the issued capital chart. 

Class of Security – Common Shares 

Size of Holding Number of holders  Total number of securities 

1 - 99 securities    

100 - 499 securities    

500 - 999 securities    

1,000 - 1,999 securities    

2,000 - 2,999 securities    

3,000 - 3,999 securities    

4,000 - 4,999 securities    
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5,000 or more securities 2  50,587,500 

14.2 Convertible Securities 

As of the date of this Listing Statement, the Issuer has the following convertible securities 

outstanding: 

 

Description of Security (include conversion /exercise 

terms, including conversion / exercise price) 

Number of 

convertible / 

exchangeable 

securities 

outstanding 

Number of listed 

securities issuable 

upon conversion / 

exercise Exercise Price Expiry Date Type of Security 

$0.375 June 13, 2026 Options 5,000,000 5,000,000 

14.3 The Issuer does not have any listed securities reserved for issuance that are not included 

in Section 14.2. 

15. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION 

15.1 Statement of Executive Compensation 

GENERAL 

For the purpose of this Statement of Executive Compensation: 

 

“Issuer” means Oriental Non-ferrous Resources Development Inc.; 

 

“compensation securities” includes stock options, convertible securities, exchangeable securities and 

similar instruments including stock appreciation rights, deferred share units and restricted stock units 

granted or issued by the company or one of its subsidiaries for services provided or to be provided, 

directly or indirectly, to the company or any of its subsidiaries; 

 

“NEO” or “named executive officer” means each of the following individuals: 

 

(a)  each individual who, in respect of the Issuer, during any part of the most recently completed 

financial year, served as chief executive officer (“CEO”), including an individual performing 

functions similar to a CEO; 

 

(b)  each individual who, in respect of the Issuer, during any part of the most recently completed 

financial year, served as chief financial officer (“CFO”), including an individual performing 

functions similar to a CFO; 

 

(c)  in respect of the Issuer and its subsidiaries, the most highly compensated executive officer other 

than the individuals identified in paragraphs (a) and (b) at the end of the most recently completed 

financial year whose total compensation was more than $150,000 for that financial year; and 
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(d)  each individual who would be a named executive officer under paragraph (c) but for the fact that 

the individual was not an executive officer of the Issuer, and was not acting in a similar capacity, 

at the end of that financial year;  

 

“external management company” includes a subsidiary, affiliate or associate of the external 

management company; 

 

 

DIRECTOR AND NEO COMPENSATION 

 

Director and NEO compensation, excluding options and compensation securities  
 

The following table sets forth all compensation paid, payable, awarded, granted, given, or otherwise 

provided, directly or indirectly, by the Issuer or its subsidiary, to each NEO and director of the Issuer, in 

any capacity, including, for greater certainty, all plan and non-plan compensation, direct and indirect pay, 

remuneration, economic or financial award, reward, benefit, gift or perquisite paid, payable, awarded, 

granted, given or otherwise provided to the NEO or a director of the Issuer for services provided and for 

services to be provided, directly or indirectly, to the Issuer or its subsidiary. 

 
 

Table of compensation excluding compensation securities 

  

Name 

and 

position 

Year 

Ended 

Sept 

30 

Salary, 

consulting 

fee, 

retainer or 

commission 

($) 

 

Bonus 

($) 

Committee 

or meeting 

fees 

($) 

Value of 

perquisites 

($) 

 

Value of all 

other 

compensation 

($) 

Total 

compensation 

($) 

Eugene 

Beukman
(1) 

CEO & 

Director 

2016 

 

2015 

 

2014 

Nil 

 

Nil 

 

N/A 

Nil 

 

Nil 

 

N/A 

$9,750 

 

Nil 

 

N/A 

Nil 

 

Nil 

 

N/A 

Nil 

 

Nil 

 

N/A 

$9,750 

 

Nil 

 

N/A 

Sam 

Wang
(2) 

CFO & 

Director 

2016 

 

2015 

 

2014 

$72,000 

 

$6,000 

 

N/A 

 

 

Nil 

 

N/A 

$3,750 

 

Nil 

 

N/A 

Nil 

 

Nil 

 

N/A 

Nil 

 

Nil 

 

N/A 

$75,750 

 

$6,000 

 

N/A 

Youliang 

Wang
(3) 

Director 

2016 

 

2015 

 

2014 

Nil 

 

Nil 

 

N/A 

Nil 

 

Nil 

 

N/A 

$3,000 

 

Nil 

 

N/A 

Nil 

 

Nil 

 

N/A 

Nil 

 

Nil 

 

N/A 

$3,000 

 

Nil 

 

N/A 

Paul 

Chung
(4) 

Former 

Director 

2016 

 

2015 

 

2014 

Nil 

 

Nil 

 

N/A 

Nil 

 

Nil 

 

N/A 

$3,750 

 

Nil 

 

N/A 

Nil 

 

Nil 

 

N/A 

Nil 

 

Nil 

 

N/A 

$3,750 

 

Nil 

 

N/A 

(1) 
Mr. Beukman has agreed to provide his services to the Issuer at a fair market rate and will invoice the Issuer 

for work performed on a periodic basis.  
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(2)
 Mr. Wang has agreed to provide his services to the Issuer at a fair market rate and will invoice the Issuer for 

work performed on a periodic basis.  

(3) 
Mr. Wang has agreed to provide his services to the Issuer at a fair market rate and will invoice the Issuer for 

work performed on a periodic basis.  

(4) 
Mr. Chung has agreed to provide his services to the Issuer at a fair market rate and will invoice the Issuer for 

work performed on a periodic basis.  

 

External Management Companies 

 

The Issuer did not engaged or enter any agreements with any external management companies. 

 

Stock Options and Other Compensation Securities  

 
The Issuer has established a stock option plan and granted 5,000,000 options to its directors and officers 

during the fiscal year ended September 30, 2016. 

 

Outstanding Share-Based Awards and Option-Based Awards 

 

 Option-based Awards Share-based Awards 

Name Number of 

securities 

underlying 

unexercised 

options (#) 

Option 

exercise 

price ($) 

Option 

expiration 

date 

Value of 

unexercised 

in-the-

money 

options ($) 

Number of 

common 

shares that 

have not 

vested (#) 

Market or 

payout value 

of share-

based awards 

that have not 

vested ($) 

Eugene 

Beukman 

CEO 

 

1,000,000 $0.375 June 13, 

2026 

Nil Nil Nil 

Sam Wang 

CFO 

1,000,000 $0.375 June 13, 

2026 

Nil Nil Nil 

 

Exercise of Compensation Securities by Directors and NEOs 

 

During the year ended September 30, 2016, no director or NEO exercised any compensation securities. 

 

Stock Option Plans 

 

The purpose of the Stock Option Plan (“Plan”) is to provide an incentive to the Issuer’s directors, senior 

officers, employees and consultants and to management company employees to continue their 

involvement with the Issuer, to increase their efforts on the Issuer’s behalf and to attract qualified new 

personnel.  The Issuer decided to implement the Plan to provide additional incentive in attracting, 

retaining and motivating directors, officers, employees and consultants of the Issuer and of its affiliates. 

 

General Description/Exchange Policies 
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The Plan is administered by the Board of Directors.  The Plan provides that the board of directors of the 

Issuer may from time to time, in its discretion, and in accordance with the Exchange requirements, grant 

to directors, officers, employees and technical consultants to the Issuer, non-transferable options to 

purchase Common Shares, provided that the number of Common Shares reserved for issuance will not 

exceed 10% of the issued and outstanding Common Shares. Such options will be exercisable for a period 

of up to ten years from the date of grant. In connection with the foregoing, the number of Common Shares 

reserved for issuance to any individual director or officer will not exceed five percent (5%) of the issued 

and outstanding Common Shares and the number of Common Shares reserved for issuance to all technical 

consultants will not exceed two percent (2%) of the issued and outstanding Common Shares. Options may 

be exercised up to 90 days following cessation of the optionee’s position with the Issuer, provided that if 

the cessation of office, directorship, or technical consulting arrangement was by reason of death, the 

option may be exercised within a maximum period of one year after such death, subject to the expiry date 

of such option. 

 

Employment, consulting and management agreements 

 

The Issuer does not have any employment, consulting or management agreements or arrangements with 

any of the Issuer’s current NEOs or directors. 

 

Oversight and description of director and named executive officer compensation 

 

The primary goal of the Issuer’s executive compensation program is to attract and retain the key 

executives necessary for the Issuer’s long term success, to encourage executives to further the 

development of the Issuer and its operations, and to motivate top quality and experienced executives.  The 

key elements of the executive compensation program are: (i) base salary or fee; (ii) potential annual 

incentive award; and (iii) incentive stock options.  The directors are of the view that all elements of the 

total program should be considered, rather than any single element. 

 

The Issuer currently does not have a compensation committee in place and the Board intends to approve 

all compensation decisions in the near future, provided that Directors who are also officers are exempt 

from participating in such compensation discussions.  The Issuer may establish a compensation 

committee in the future to assist the Board in fulfilling its responsibility to shareholders, potential 

shareholders and the investment community by reviewing and providing recommendations to the Board 

regarding executive compensation, succession plans for executive officers, and the Issuer’s overall 

compensation and benefits policies, plans and programs. 

 

Once the Compensation Committee is established, it will be responsible for determining all forms of 

compensation, including long-term incentive in the form of stock options, to be granted to the CEO, or 

such person acting in capacity of CEO of the Issuer, the directors and management, and for reviewing the 

recommendations respecting compensation of the other officers of the Issuer, to ensure such arrangements 

reflect the responsibilities and risks associated with each position. The Compensation Committee will 

also periodically review the compensation paid to directors, officers, and management based on such 

factors as:  i) recruiting and retaining executives critical to the success of the Issuer and the enhancement 

of shareholder value; ii) providing fair and competitive compensation; iii) balancing the interests of 

management and the Issuer’s shareholders; and iv) rewarding performance, both on an individual basis 

and with respect to operations in general. 

 

Long-term incentive in the form of options to purchase common shares of the Issuer are intended to align 

the interests of the Issuer’s directors and its executive officers with those of its shareholders, to provide a 

long term incentive that rewards these individuals for their contribution to the creation of shareholder 
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value, and to reduce the cash compensation the Issuer would otherwise have to pay.  Currently the Issuer 

has not established a stock option plan. 

 

In general, the Issuer will provide a specific benefit or perquisite only when it provides competitive value 

and promotes retention of executives, or when the perquisite provides shareholder value, such as ensuring 

the health of executives.  The limited perquisites the Issuer provides its executives may include a fee for 

each board or Audit Committee meeting attended, to assist with their out-of-pocket costs, such benefits 

and perquisites as set out, respectively, in the “Table of compensation excluding compensation securities” 

above. 

 

Pension disclosure 

 

The Issuer does not have any pension, defined benefit, defined contribution or deferred compensation 

plans in place. 

16. INDEBTEDNESS OF DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS 

No directors, Executive Officer, or any associate or affiliate of any of them, has been or is 

indebted to the Issuer of the Issuer or to any other entity which is, or at any time since the 

beginning of the last completed year was, the subject of a guarantee, support agreement, letter of 

credit or other similar arrangement or understanding provided by the Issuer. 

17. RISK FACTORS 

17.1 General Risk Factors 

The common shares should be considered highly speculative due to the nature of the Issuer’s 

business and the present stage of its development.  These risk factors are not a definitive list of 

all risk factors associated with an investment in the Issuer or in connection with the Issuer’s 

operations.  There may be other risks and uncertainties that are not known to the Issuer or that 

the Issuer currently believes are not material, but which also may have a material adverse effect 

on its business, financial condition, operating results or prospects.  In that case, the trading price 

of the common shares could decline substantially, and investors may lose all or part of the value 

of the common shares held by them. 

An investment in securities of the Issuer should only be made by persons who can afford a 

significant or total loss of their investment. There is no market through which these securities 

may be sold and purchasers may not be able to resell securities purchased under this Prospectus. 

The possible sale of common shares released from escrow on each release date could negatively 

affect the market price of the common shares and also result in an excess of sellers of common 

shares to buyers of common shares and seriously affect the liquidity of the common shares. 

Accumulated Deficit and Negative Operating Cash Flows 

The Issuer is a relatively new company with limited operating history and is subject to all of the 

business risks and uncertainties associated with any junior exploration companies. The Issuer 

expects its costs to increase in future periods as it continues to expend substantial financial 
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resources on exploration and evaluation activities on its Mongolian properties. The Issuer 

expects negative operating cash flows as it continues its exploration activities. 

No Ongoing Operations and No Production History 

The Issuer is a mineral exploration company and has no operations or revenue.  

Failure to Obtain Requisite Approvals for Exploration Activity 

Under the 2006 Mongolian Minerals Law, the holder of an exploration license has rights to 

conduct exploration activities in the license area, to construct temporary structures within the 

license area related to its exploration activities, and if gaining access to its exploration license 

area requires passing over land which is owned or possessed by others, to traverse such land 

subject to terms and conditions negotiated with such owners or possessors. If a mineral resource 

is identified by exploration activities, the exploration license holder has the right to apply for a 

mining license for any part of the exploration license area.  

Exploration license holders are also subject to various environmental protection obligations. 

Within 30 days of receiving an exploration license, the holder must prepare, and submit to the 

relevant authorities, an environmental protection and reclamation plan. Once the plan has been 

approved by the relevant authorities, the holder of the exploration license must deposit funds 

equal to 50% of its environmental protection budget for that particular year in a bank account 

established by the governing authority of the soum (district) in which the exploration license area 

is located. Holders of exploration licenses must also submit to relevant authorities an exploration 

plan and annual reports of exploration activities.  

The Parliament of Mongolia passed the Law of Mongolia on Amending the Minerals Law (the 

Amendment) on 1 July 2014, amending the 2006 Law of Mongolia on Minerals (the Minerals 

Law). The Amendment introduced several changes and new provisions that have the aim of 

improving the existing legal framework relating to mining. Important provisions pertaining to 

Exploration Licences included allowing exploration licences (except those for radioactive 

minerals) to be extended to a total duration of 12 years and reducing the maximum area of a 

single exploration license to 150,000 ha from 400,000 ha. In return for the additional three-year 

extension, a license holder is subject to exploration expenditures of not less than US$10 per 

hectare in years 10-12 and a fee of US$5 per hectare of license area in license years 10-12.  

If a commercially viable mineral resource is defined within the license area of an exploration 

license, the holder of the exploration license is entitled to apply for a mining license covering the 

relevant portion of the license area defined by specific longitude and latitude coordinates in the 

mineral exploration license. A mining license holder has the right to conduct mining activities 

throughout the license area and to construct structures within the license area that are related to 

its mining activities. All such activities must be conducted in compliance with the 2006 Minerals 

Law and relevant Mongolian laws pertaining to health and safety, environment protection and 

reclamation. Mining licenses are granted by the MRAM for an initial term of thirty years and are 

renewable for two successive periods of twenty years each based upon remaining reserves, for a 

maximum overall period of seventy years. Upon the expiration of a mining license, the license 
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and the rights under such license revert to the Government of Mongolia. In the case of all 

minerals other than coal and common construction minerals (e.g. sand and gravel), annual 

license fees of US$15.0 are payable per hectare of the relevant mining license area. A mining 

license is subject to cancellation if applicable license fees are not paid on time or other 

requirements under the 2006 Minerals Law or other relevant laws are not satisfied.  

To receive a mining license, an exploration license holder must submit an application to the 

MRAM together with, among other documents, an environmental impact assessment and a 

resource report. Holders of mining licenses must also prepare environmental protection and 

reclamation plans and satisfy various reporting and security deposit requirements. Obligations of 

a mining licence require submitting a feasibility study on the development of the deposit 

prepared by an accredited technical expert within one year of obtaining the mining license; 

ensuring that feasibility studies include detailed information on the transportation of mining 

products, development of infrastructure, and funds required for mine restoration and closure 

work.  

Failure of the Issuer to maintain the Property in good standing could result in the loss of all rights 

to explore the Property. 

Volatility of Share Prices 

Share prices are subject to changes because of numerous factors beyond the Issuer’s control, 

including reports of new information, changes in its financial situation, the sale of its common 

shares in the market, its failure to achieve financial results in line with the expectations of 

analysts, or announcements by the Issuer or any of its competitors concerning results. There is no 

guarantee that the market price of the common shares will be protected from any such 

fluctuations in the future. 

In the past, companies have experienced volatility in their share value and have been the subject 

of securities class action litigation. The Issuer might become involved in securities class action 

litigation in the future.  Such litigation often results in substantial costs and diversion of 

management’s attention and resources and could have a negative effect on the Issuer’s business 

and results of operation. 

Limited Operating History 

The Issuer has no history of earnings. There are no known commercial quantities of mineral 

reserves on the Issuer’s Property.  There is no assurance that the Issuer will ever discover any 

economic quantities of mineral reserves. 

Requirement For Further Financing 

The Issuer has limited financial resources and may need to raise additional funds to carry out 

exploration of its Property.  There is no assurance the Issuer will be able to raise additional funds 

or will be able to raise additional funds on terms acceptable to the Issuer.  If the Issuer 's 

exploration programs are successful and favourable exploration results are obtained, the Property 

may be developed into commercial production.  The Issuer will require additional funds to place 
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the Property into production.  The only sources of future funds presently available to the Issuer 

are the sale of equity capital, debt, or offering of interests in its Property to be earned by another 

party or parties by carrying out development work.  There is no assurance that any such funds 

will be available to the Issuer or be available on terms acceptable to the Issuer.  If funds are 

available, there is no assurance that such funds will be sufficient to bring the Property to 

commercial production.  Failure to obtain additional financing on a timely basis could have a 

material adverse effect on the Issuer, and could cause the Issuer to forfeit its interest in its 

Property and reduce or terminate its operations. 

Exploration 

At present, there are no bodies of ore, known or inferred, on the Property and there are no known 

bodies of commercially recoverable ore on the Property.  There is no assurance that the Issuer’s 

mineral exploration activities will result in any discoveries of commercial bodies of ore on the 

Property.  

Development 

The business of exploration for precious metals involves a high degree of risk.  Few exploration 

properties are ultimately developed into producing properties.  The Issuer’s Property is at the 

exploration stage. 

Title to Properties 

Because the Issuer’s interest in the Property is by way of exploration licence XV-014091 and 

mining licence MV-017604 (i), the Issuer does not own the entire Property, rather the Issuer has 

licenses to explore and mine the Property, subject to meeting certain obligations; (ii) if the Issuer 

fails to meets its obligations under the licenses, it will lose any interest in the Property; (iii) the 

Issuer is dependent on the Government of Mongolia to perform its obligations under the licenses 

and if the Government of Mongolia fails to acknowledge the Issuer’s rights thereunder the Issuer 

may not be able to explore or mine the Property at all.  There is no guarantee the Issuer will be 

able to raise sufficient funding in the future to carry out the recommended work program on the 

Property.  

Management 

The success of the Issuer is largely dependent upon the performance of its management.  The 

loss of the services of these persons may have a material adverse effect on the Issuer 's business 

and prospects.  There is no assurance that the Issuer can maintain the service of its management 

or other qualified personnel required to operate its business. 

Requirement for Permits and Licenses 

The Issuer will be applying for all necessary licenses and permits under applicable laws and 

regulations to carry on the exploration activities which it is currently planning in respect of the 

Property, and the Issuer believes it will comply in all material respects with the terms of such 

licenses and permits.  However, such licenses and permits are subject to changes in regulations 
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and in various operational circumstances.  A substantial number of additional permits and 

licenses will be required should the Issuer proceed beyond exploration.  There can be no 

guarantee that the Issuer will be able to obtain such licenses and permits.  

Environmental Risks and other Regulatory Requirements 

The current or future operations of the Issuer, including the exploration activities and 

commencement of production on the Property, will require permits from various federal and 

local governmental authorities, and such operations are and will be governed by laws and 

regulations governing exploration, development, production, taxes, labour standards, 

occupational health, waste disposal, toxic substances, land use, environmental protection, site 

safety and other matters.  There can be no assurance that all permits which the Issuer may require 

for its facilities and conduct of exploration and development operations will be obtainable on 

reasonable terms or that such laws and regulations would not have a material adverse effect on 

any exploration and development project which the Issuer might undertake. 

Failure to comply with applicable laws, regulations and permitting requirements may result in 

enforcement actions including orders issued by regulatory or judicial authorities causing 

operations to cease or be curtailed and may include corrective measures requiring capital 

expenditures, installation of additional equipment or remedial actions.  Parties engaged in 

exploration and development operations may be required to compensate those suffering loss or 

damage by reason of the exploration and development activities and may have civil or criminal 

fines or penalties imposed upon them for violation of applicable laws or regulations. 

Amendments to current laws, regulations and permits governing the operations and activities of 

mineral companies, or more stringent enforcement thereof, could have a material adverse impact 

on the Issuer and cause increases in capital expenditure or exploration and development costs or 

reduction in levels of production at producing properties or require abandonment or delays in 

development of new properties. 

Uninsurable Risks 

Exploration of mineral properties involves numerous risks, including unexpected or unusual 

geological conditions, rock bursts, cave-ins, fires, floods, earthquakes and other environmental 

occurrences, and political and social instability. It is not always possible to obtain insurance 

against all such risks and the Issuer may decide not to insure against certain risks as a result of 

high premiums or other reasons. Should such liabilities arise, they could reduce or eliminate any 

further profitability and result in increasing costs and a decline in the value of the securities of 

the Issuer. The Issuer does not maintain insurance against environmental risks. 

Competition 

Significant and increasing competition exists for mineral opportunities in Mongolia.  There are a 

number of large established mineral exploration companies with substantial capabilities and 

greater financial and technical resources than the Issuer.  The Issuer may be unable to acquire 

additional mineral properties or acquire such properties on terms it considers acceptable. 
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Accordingly, there can be no assurance that the Issuer's exploration programs will yield any 

reserves or result in any commercial mineral operations. 

Conflicts of Interest 

Directors of the Issuer may, from time to time, serve as directors of, or participate in ventures 

with other companies involved in natural resource development.  As a result, there may be 

situations that involve a conflict of interest for such Directors.  Each Director will attempt not 

only to avoid dealing with such other companies in situations where conflicts might arise but will 

also disclose all such conflicts in accordance with the Business Corporations Act (British 

Columbia) and will govern themselves in respect thereof to the best of their ability in accordance 

with the obligations imposed upon them by law. 

Litigation 

The Issuer and/or its Directors may be subject to a variety of civil or other legal proceedings, 

with or without merit.  The Issuer does not know of any such pending or actual material legal 

proceedings as of the date of this Prospectus. 

No Cash Dividends Are Expected to be Paid in the Foreseeable Future 

The Issuer has not declared any cash dividends to date.  The Issuer intends to retain any future 

earnings to finance its business operations and any future growth. Therefore, the Issuer does not 

anticipate declaring any cash dividends in the foreseeable future. 

Ore Reserves and Reserve Estimates 

The Issuer’s business relies upon the ability to determine whether a given property has 

commercial quantities of recoverable minerals. No assurance can be given that any discovered 

mineral reserves and resources will be recovered or that they will be recovered at the rates 

estimated. Mineral reserve and resource estimates are based on limited sampling and, 

consequently, are uncertain because the samples may not be representative. Mineral reserve and 

resource estimates may require revision (either up or down) based on actual production 

experience. 

17.2 Additional Securityholder Risk 

There is no risk that securityholders of the Issuer may become liable to make an additional 

contribution beyond the price of the security. 

17.3 Other Risks 

Subject to the risk factors set out under Part 17.1 and 17.2 above, there are no other material risk 

factors that a reasonable investor would consider relevant to an investment in the Issuer Shares. 
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18. PROMOTERS 

18.1 Promoter Consideration 

No consideration has been paid to any promoter of the Issuer within two years immediately 

preceding this Listing Statement. 

Mr. Youliang Wang, a director of the Issuer, may be considered to be a promoter of the Issuer.  

Mr.  Wang beneficially owns directly or indirectly, or exercise control or direction over, 

36,337,500 share of the Issuer, representing 46.8% of the issued and outstanding shares.  In 

addition, Mr. Wang holds 1,000,000 stock options.  On a fully diluted basis, Mr. Lee beneficially 

owns, directly or indirectly 37,337,500 shares of the Issuer, representing 45.2% of the then 

issued and outstanding shares. 

18.2 Not applicable. 

19. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS 

19.1 Legal Proceedings 

There are no legal proceedings material to the Issuer to which the Issuer is a party or of which 

any of its property is the subject matter, and there are no such proceedings known to the Issuer to 

be contemplated.   

19.2 Not applicable. 

20. INTEREST OF MANAGEMENT AND OTHERS IN MATERIAL 

TRANSACTIONS 

Except as disclosed herein, none of the executive officers or directors or principal shareholders 

of the Issuer or any associate or affiliate of the foregoing have a material interest, direct or 

indirect, in any transactions in which the Issuer has participated since the Issuer’s incorporation 

on August 20, 2015, to the date of this Updated Listing Statement, or will have any material 

interest in any proposed transaction, which has materially affected or will materially affect the 

Issuer.  
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21. AUDITORS, TRANSFER AGENTS AND REGISTRARS 

21.1 The auditor of the Issuer is MNP LLP, of Suite 2200, 1021 West Hastings Street, 

Vancouver, British Columbia, V7S 2W3.   

21.2 The registrar and transfer agent of the Issuer is National Issuer Services Ltd., Suite 760, 

777 Hornby Street, Vancouver, B.C., V6Z 1S4.  

22. MATERIAL CONTRACTS 

22.1 Material Contracts of the Issuer 

The Issuer has not entered into any material contracts within the two years before the date of this 

Listing Statement, other than contracts entered into in the ordinary course of business, except as 

follows: 

(a) the Escrow Agreement dated February 11, 2016 among the Issuer, Computershare 

Investor Services Inc., and certain shareholders;  

(b) the Escrow Assumption Agreement dated October 7, 2016 among the Issuer, National 

Issuer Services Ltd., and Computershare Investor Services Inc., and 

(c) a Transfer Agent and Registrar Agreement dated September 26, 2016 between the Issuer 

and National Issuer Services Ltd. 

22.2 co-tenancy, unitholders' or limited partnership agreement 

Not applicable. 

23. INTEREST OF EXPERTS 

23.1 Interest of Experts 

Except for MNP LLP, Chartered Accountants (the auditors for each of the Issuer) and except as 

disclosed herein, no person or company whose profession or business gives authority to a 

statement made by the person or company and who is named as having prepared or certified a 

part of this Listing Statement or as having prepared or certified a report or valuation described or 

included in this Listing Statement holds any beneficial interest, direct or indirect, in any 

securities or property of the Issuer or of an Associate or Affiliate of the Issuer and no such 

person is expected to be elected, appointed or employed as a director, senior officer or employee 

of the Issuer or of an Associate or Affiliate of the Issuer and no such person is a promoter of the 

Issuer or an Associate or Affiliate of the Issuer.  MNP LLP is independent of the Issuer in 

accordance with the rules of professional conduct of the Chartered Professional Accountants of 

British Columbia. 
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24. OTHER MATERIAL FACTS 

Other than as set out elsewhere in this Listing Statement, there are no other material facts about 

the Issuer. 

25. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

25.1 The audited financial statements of the Issuer for the year ended September 30, 2016 are 

attached as Appendix A to this Listing Statement. 

 



 

SCHEDULE "A" 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 

(see attached) 



Oriental Non-ferrous Resources
Development Inc.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 AND 2015

(Expressed in Canadian Dollars)



Management’s Responsibility for Financial Reporting

To the Shareholders of Oriental Non-ferrous Resources Development Inc.:

Management is responsible for the preparation and presentation of the accompanying consolidated
financial statements, including responsibility for significant accounting judgments and estimates in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards. This responsibility includes selecting
appropriate accounting principles and methods, and making decisions affecting the measurement of
transactions in which objective judgment is required.

In discharging its responsibilities for the integrity and fairness of the financial statements,
management designs and maintains the necessary accounting systems and related internal controls to
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are authorized, assets are safeguarded and financial
records are properly maintained to provide reliable information for the preparation of consolidated
financial statements.

The executive director is responsible for overseeing management in the performance of its financial
reporting responsibilities, and for approving the financial information included in the annual report.
The Board fulfils these responsibilities by reviewing the financial information prepared by
management and discussing relevant matters with management and external auditors. The Board has
the responsibility of meeting with management and external auditors to discuss the internal controls
over the financial reporting process, auditing matters and financial reporting issues. The Board is
also responsible for recommending the appointment of the Company's external auditors.

MNP LLP is appointed by the shareholders to audit the consolidated financial statements and report
directly to them; their report follows. The external auditors have full and free access to, and meet
periodically and separately with, both the Board and management to discuss their audit findings.

January 30, 2017

(Signed) (Signed)
“Eugene Beukman” “ Sheng Wang”
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Shareholders of Oriental Non-ferrous Resources Development Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Oriental Non-ferrous Resources Development
Inc. and its subsidiaries (the “Company”), which comprise the consolidated statements of financial position as at
September 30, 2016 and September 30, 2015, and the consolidated statement of operations and comprehensive loss,
consolidated statements of change in equity and consolidated statements of cash flows for the years then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Management’s Responsibility for consolidated Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, as issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board, and for such internal control as Management determines necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation
of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by Management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statement.

We believe that the audit evidence obtained in our audits is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the
Company as at September 30, 2016 and September 30, 2015, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the
years then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards.

Emphasis of Matter
Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to Note 2(c) of these consolidated financial statements, which states
that the Company incurred significant operating losses from operations, negative cash flows from operating activities
and has an accumulated deficit. This, along with other matters described in Note 2(c), indicates the existence of a
material uncertainty which may cast significant doubt about the ability of the Company to continue as a going concern.

Vancouver, BC, Canada
January 30, 2017 Chartered Professional Accountants
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Oriental Non-ferrous Resources Development Inc.
(An Exploration Stage Company)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(Expressed in Canadian Dollars)

September 30,
2016

September 30,
2015

Assets $ $

Current Assets

Cash 172,348 699,948

Other receivable 357 -

Prepaid - 1,477

Total Current Assets 172,705 701,425

Non-current Assets

Exploration and evaluation assets (Note 7) 1,768,577 1,736,396

Total Assets 1,941,282 2,437,821

Liabilities

Current Liabilities

Accounts payable 125,133 87,776

Due to shareholders (Note 9) 2,471 5,386

127,604 93,162

Shareholders' Equity

Share capital (Note 8) 691,665 691,665

Share reserve (Note 8) 2,400,342 2,400,342

Contributed surplus (Note 8) 1,864,010 -

Deficit (3,144,927) (762,090)
Currency translation reserve 2,588 14,742

1,813,678 2,344,659

Total Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity 1,941,282 2,437,821

Nature of Operations (Note 1)
Subsequent Event (Note 11)

Approved by:

“Eugene Beukman” “Sheng Wang”

Director Director

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Oriental Non-ferrous Resources Development Inc.
(An Exploration Stage Company)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND COMREHENSIVE LOSS
(Expressed in Canadian Dollars)

Year Ended September 30,

2016 2015

Expenses $ $

Bank fees 825 340

Foreign exchange (loss) (132) (5,152)
Listing expense (Note 4) - 22,937

Office expenses 28,444 20,963

Professional fees 330,813 103,471

Project expenses 5,780 7,947

Payroll expenses 107,914 32,939

Regulatory Filing expenses 19,496 -
Rent and utilities 3,123 5,593

Share-based compensation (Note 8,9) 1,864,010 -
Travel and entertainment 22,564 10,544

(2,382,837) (199,582)

Loss from operations (2,382,837) (199,582)

Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)

Exchange gain (loss) on translation (12,154) 20,891

Comprehensive loss for the year (2,394,991) (178,691)

Basic and diluted loss per share (0.03) (0.00)

Weighted average number of

common shares outstanding

- basic and diluted 77,354,167 75,051,598

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Oriental Non-ferrous Resources Development Inc.
(An Exploration Stage Company)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(Expressed in Canadian Dollars)

Year Ended September 30,

2016 2015

$ $

Cash provided by (used in):

Operations:

Net loss for the year (2,382,837) (199,582)
Share-based compensation 1,864,010 -
Foreign exchange gain (loss) 180 (6,335)

Change in non-cash working capital balances:

Prepaid expenses 1,422 (1,384)
Amount due to related parties (4,328) 5,387

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 37,445 85,873

(484,108) (116,041)
Investing:

Exploration and evaluation assets (33,196) (303,940)

Financing:

Share capital contribution - 480,457

Proceeds received from private placement - 635,626

- 1,116,083
Effect of foreign exchange on cash and cash
equivalents (10,296) 403

Change in cash and cash equivalents (527,600) 696,505

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 699,948 3,443

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 172,348 699,948

Supplemental Cash Flow Information

Interest paid - -

Income taxes paid - -

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Oriental Non-ferrous Resources Development Inc.
(An Exploration Stage Company)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
(Expressed in Canadian Dollars)

Number of
Shares

Share
capital

Share
reserve

Contributed
Surplus Deficit

Currency
translation reserve Total

$ $ $ $ $ $
Balance, September 30, 2014 75,003,600 327,416 1,710,884 - (562,508) (6,149) 1,469,643

Cancelation of Tunshan
shares under common control (3,600) (271,376)

271,376
- - -

-

Issuance of shares for cash 2,354,167 635,625 - - - - 635,625
Capital contribution from

shareholders
- - 418,082

- - -
418,082

Net loss for the year - - - - (199,582) - (199,582)
Currency translation - - - - 20,891 20,891

Balance, September 30, 2015 77,354,167 691,665 2,400,342 - (762,090) 14,742 2,344,659
Net loss for the year - - - - (2,382,837) - (2,382,837)
Share-based compensation - - - 1,864,010 - - 1,864,010
Currency translation - - - - - (12,154) (12,154)

Balance, September 30, 2016 77,354,167 691,665 2,400,342 1,864,010 (3,144,927) 2,588 1,813,678

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.



Oriental Non-ferrous Resources Development Inc.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Years Ended September 30, 2016 and 2015
(Expressed in Canadian Dollars)
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1. NATURE OF OPERATIONS

Oriental Non-ferrous Resources Development Inc. (the “Company” or ‘Oriental”) was
incorporated under the Business Corporations Act of British Columbia on August 20, 2015. The
head and registered office of the Company is 5148 Williams Road, Richmond, British Columbia.
The Company’s principal business activity is the acquisition, exploration and development of
mineral properties.

On September 10, 2015, the Company acquired 100% of Genuine Success Global Limited
(“GSG”), a company incorporated on May 20, 2014 under the laws of British Virgin Islands, by
way of share exchange. Pursuant to the share exchange agreement between the Company, GSG
and the shareholders of GSG, the Company issued 75,000,000 shares of the Company to the
shareholders of GSG, which constitutes as a reverse acquisition transaction (note 4).

GSG owns 100% of Tunshan Xiangdong Co., Ltd. (“Tunshan”), a mineral exploration company
incorporated on August 31, 2007 under the laws of Mongolia. The head and registered office of
the Company is located at #9-78, Suite 22, 1st khoroo, Bayangol district, Ulaanbaatar city,
Mongolia. Tunshan has acquired mineral exploration license with expiry date of July 31, 2017.
The mineral properties are located in Kharganii am-1, Bornuur soum, Tuv aimag, Mongolia
totalling 1,073 hectares. Tunshan has also acquired mineral mining license with expiry date of
September 5, 2044 covering 42.12 hectares of same areas in the mineral exploration license in
Kharganii am-1, Bornuur soum, Tuv aimag, Mongolia.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

a) Statement of Compliance

These consolidated statements are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS”), as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and
interpretations of the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (“IFRIC”).

These consolidated financial statements of the Company for the years ended September 30, 2016
and 2015 were authorized for issuance by the board of directors on January 30, 2017.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for
financial instruments classified as at fair value through profit or loss that have been measured at
fair value. In addition, these consolidated financial statements have been prepared using the
accrual basis of accounting, except for cash flow information.

b) Basis of Consolidation

These consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly

owned subsidiaries GSG and Tunshan. Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Company

obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Company loses control of the subsidiary.

All material inter-company transactions and balances have been eliminated for the purpose of
these consolidated financial statements.



Oriental Non-ferrous Resources Development Inc.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Years Ended September 30, 2016 and 2015
(Expressed in Canadian Dollars)
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

c) Going Concern

These audited consolidated financial statements have been prepared by management on the basis
of IFRS applicable to a going concern, which assumes that the Company will continue in
operation for the foreseeable future and will be able to realize its assets and discharge its
obligations in the normal course of operations. In assessing whether the going concern
assumption is appropriate, management takes into account all available information about the
future, which is at least, but is not limited to, twelve months from the end of the reporting period.

The Company is in the process of exploring its mineral property in Mongolia. The Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern and the recoverability of the amounts capitalized for
mineral properties and related deferred exploration expenditures are dependent upon the ability
of the Company to raise additional financing in order to complete the exploration and
development of its resource properties and acquire additional mineral properties, the discovery of
economically recoverable reserves, the attainment of future profitable production or proceeds
from disposition of the Company’s resource properties. The outcome of these matters cannot be
predicted at this time.

These consolidated financial statements do not reflect the adjustments to the carrying value of
assets and liabilities, or the impact on the consolidated statements of loss and comprehensive loss
and financial position classifications that would be necessary were the going concern assumption
not appropriate.

September 30, September 30,

2016 2015

Deficit $3,144,927 $762,090

Working capital $45,101 $608,263

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Significant accounting judgments and estimates

The preparation of these consolidated financial statements in conformity of IFRS requires
management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of expenses
during the reporting period. Estimates and assumptions are continuously evaluated and are based
on management’s experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. However, actual outcomes can differ from
these estimates.



Oriental Non-ferrous Resources Development Inc.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Years Ended September 30, 2016 and 2015
(Expressed in Canadian Dollars)
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting judgments and estimates (continued)

The following judgments and estimates are those deemed by management to be material to the
Company’s consolidated financial statements.

Estimates

(i) Impairment of exploration and evaluation assets
Determining if there are any facts and circumstances indicating impairment losses or reversal of
impairment losses is a subjective process involving judgment and a number of estimates and
interpretations.

When an indication of impairment loss or a reversal of an impairment loss exists, the recoverable
amount of the individual asset or the cash-generating units must be estimated.

(ii) Deferred tax liabilities and assets
Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at tax rates expected to apply in the period during
which the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that are
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period of the financial information.
The measurement of liabilities and deferred tax assets reflects the tax consequences that result
from the manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the reporting period of the
financial information, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Judgments

(i) Going concern
Management has applied judgments in the assessment of the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern when preparing its consolidated financial statements for the years ended
September 30, 2016 and 2015. Management prepares the consolidated financial statements on a
going concern basis unless management either intends to liquidate the entity or to cease trading,
or has no realistic alternative but to do so. In assessing whether the going concern assumption is
appropriate, management takes into account all available information about the future, which is
at least, but is not limited to, twelve months from the end of the reporting period. Management
considered a wide range of factors relating to current and expected profitability, debt repayment
schedules and potential sources of replacement financing. As a result of the assessment,
management concluded there are significant doubt as to the ability of the Company to meet its
obligations as they fall due and, accordingly, the ultimate appropriateness of the use of
accounting principles applicable to a going concern.

Foreign Currency Translation

The functional currency for the Company and GSG is Canadian dollars. The functional currency
for Tunshan is Chinese Renminbi (“RMB”) as this is the principal currency of the economic
environment in which Tunshan operates. The reporting currency of the Company is Canadian
dollars.



Oriental Non-ferrous Resources Development Inc.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Years Ended September 30, 2016 and 2015
(Expressed in Canadian Dollars)
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Foreign Currency Translation (continued)

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transaction. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities not
denominated in the functional currency of an entity are recognized in the statements of loss and
comprehensive loss.

Non-monetary items measured at historical cost are translated using the exchange rates at the
date of the transaction. Non-monetary items measured at fair value are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when fair value is determined.

Assets and liabilities of entities with functional currencies are translated at the period end rates of
exchange, and the results of their operations are translated at average rates of exchange for the
period. Gains or losses resulting from these translation adjustments are included in shareholders’
equity as currency translation reserve. On disposal of the foreign operation the cumulative
translation differences recognized in equity are reclassified to statements of loss and
comprehensive loss.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand, deposits in banks and highly liquid
investments with an original maturity of three months or less. As at September 30, 2016 and
2015 the cash and cash equivalents consist of cash only. As at September 30, 2016, cash and cash
equivalents consist of $149,038 (September 30, 2015: $1,948) bank deposit and $23,310
(September 30, 2015: $698,000) cash held in the trust account of the Company’s lawyer. The
Company’s lawyer maintains its trust accounts on deposit with a Canadian chartered bank.

Financial Instruments

All financial assets are initially recorded at fair value and classified into one of four categories:
held to maturity, available for sale, loans and receivable or at fair value through profit or loss
(“FVTPL”). All financial liabilities are initially recorded at fair value and classified as either
FVTPL or other financial liabilities. Financial instruments comprise cash, accounts payable, and
due to shareholders. At initial recognition management has classified financial assets and
liabilities as follows:

i) Financial assets
The Company has determined its cash as FVTPL. A financial instrument is classified at FVTPL
if it is held for trading or is designated as such upon initial recognition. Financial instruments are
designated at FVTPL if the Company manages such investments and makes purchase and sale
decisions based on their fair value in accordance with Company’s documented risk management
or investment strategy. Financial instruments FVTPL are measured at fair value and changes
therein are recognized in income..



Oriental Non-ferrous Resources Development Inc.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Years Ended September 30, 2016 and 2015
(Expressed in Canadian Dollars)
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial Instruments (continued)

ii) Financial liabilities
The Company has determined its accounts payable and due to shareholders as other financial
liabilities and is initially recorded at fair value and subsequently measured at amortization costs
by using the effective interest method. The Company derecognizes a financial liability when its
contractual obligations are discharged, cancelled or expired.

Exploration and Evaluation Assets

Exploration and evaluation assets include the costs of acquiring licenses, costs associated with
exploration and evaluation activity, and the fair value (at acquisition date) of exploration and
evaluation assets acquired in a business combination. All costs related to the acquisition,
exploration and development of exploration and evaluation assets are capitalized. Costs incurred
before the Company has obtained the legal rights to explore an area are recognized in profit or
loss.

Exploration and evaluation assets are assessed for impairment if (i) sufficient data exists to
determine technical feasibility and commercial viability and (ii) facts and circumstances suggest
that the carrying amount exceeds the recoverable amount. Once the technical feasibility and
commercial viability of the extraction of resources in an area of interest are demonstrable,
exploration and evaluation assets attributable to that area of interest are first tested for
impairment and then reclassified to mineral property assets within property, plant, and
equipment.

Recoverability of the carrying amount of the exploration and evaluation assets is dependent on
successful development and commercial exploitation, or alternatively, sale of the respective areas
of interest.

Exploration Tax Credits

The Company accounts for mining tax credits on eligible exploration expenditures as a deduction
from its mineral properties interests, on a property by property basis, and will be charged to
operations on the same basis as the deferred acquisition and exploration and development
expenditures. The exploration tax credits are recognized on a cash basis, whereby the amount
will be recorded only when refund received from corresponding tax authority.

Share Capital

Common shares are classified as equity. Transaction costs directly attributable to the issue of
common shares and share options are recognized as a deduction from equity, net of any tax
effects.



Oriental Non-ferrous Resources Development Inc.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Years Ended September 30, 2016 and 2015
(Expressed in Canadian Dollars)
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Income Taxes

Any income tax on profit or loss for the period presented comprises current and deferred tax.
Income tax is recognized in profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognized
directly in equity or other comprehensive income, in which case the income tax is recognized in
equity or other comprehensive income.

Current tax
Current tax is based on the results for the period as adjusted for items that are not taxable or not
deductible. Current tax is calculated using tax rates and laws that were enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. Provisions are established where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to
be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred tax
Deferred taxes are the taxes expected to be payable or recoverable on the difference between the
carrying amounts of assets in the statements of financial position and their corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit, and are accounted for using the liability method.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred
tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which deductible temporary differences can be utilized. Such assets and liabilities are not
recognized if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or from the
initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets in a transaction that
affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities:
• are generally recognized for all temporary differences;
• are recognized for taxable temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries

except where the reversal of the temporary difference can be controlled and it is probable
that the difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future; and

• are not recognized on temporary differences that arise from goodwill which is not deductible
for tax purposes.

Deferred tax assets:
• are recognized to the extent it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which

the deductible temporary differences can be utilized; and
• are reviewed at the end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer

probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of an asset to be
recovered.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Years Ended September 30, 2016 and 2015
(Expressed in Canadian Dollars)
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Earnings (Loss) Per Share

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings (loss) per share data for its common shares,
calculated by dividing the earnings (loss) attributable to common shareholders of the Company
by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the period. Basic loss per
share is calculated by dividing the loss attributable to common shareholders by the weighted-
average number of shares outstanding during the period. Diluted loss per share does not adjust
the loss attributable to common shareholders or the weighted average number of common shares
outstanding when the effect is anti-dilutive.

In accordance with IFRSs, the equity structure in the consolidated financial statements following
a reverse acquisition reflects the equity structure of the legal acquirer (the accounting acquiree),
including the equity interests issued by the legal acquirer to effect the business combination.

Comprehensive Income (Loss)

Comprehensive income is the overall change in the net assets of the Company for a period, other
than changes attributable to transactions with shareholders. It is made up of net income and other
comprehensive income. The historical make up of net income has not changed. Other
comprehensive income includes gains or losses, which IFRS requires be recognizing in a period,
but excluding from net income for that period.

Related Party Transactions

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control
the other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and
operating decisions. Parties are also considered to be related if they are subject to common
control. Related parties may be individuals or corporate entities. A transaction is considered to be
a related party transaction when there is a transfer of resources or obligations between related
parties.

Impairment of assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Company assesses all cash generating units to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets are impaired. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment, if
any. The recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. Fair
value is determined as the amount that would be obtained from the sale of the asset in an arm’s
length transaction between knowledgeable and willing parties. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.
If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount and the impairment loss is recognized in
profit or loss for the period. For an asset that does not generate largely independent cash inflows,
the recoverable amount is determined for the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Decommissioning, restoration and similar liabilities (“Asset retirement obligation”)

The Company records the present value of estimated costs of legal and constructive obligations
required to restore the site in the period in which the obligation is incurred. The nature of these
restoration activities include dismantling and removing structures, rehabilitating mines and
tailings dam, dismantling facilities, closure of plant and waste sites and restoration, reclamation
and re-vegetation of affected areas.

The future obligations for well closure activities are estimated by the Company using well
closure plans or other similar studies which outline the requirements that will be carried out to
meet the obligations. Since the obligations are dependent on the laws and regulations of the
countries in which the wells operate, the requirements could change as a result of amendments in
the laws and regulations relating to environmental protection and other legislation affecting
resource companies.

As the estimate of the obligations is based on future expectations, a number of assumptions and
judgments are made by Management in the determination of closure provisions. The closure
provisions are more uncertain into the future the closure activities are to be carried out.

The present value of decommissioning and site restoration provision is recorded as a long term
liability as incurred and records an increase in the carrying value of the related asset by a
corresponding amount. The provision is discounted using a nominal, risk free pre-tax discount
rate. Charges for accretion and restoration expenditures are recorded as operating activities. The
related decommissioning provision is recorded as part of the mineral property and depreciated
accordingly. In subsequent periods, the carrying amount of the liability is accreted by a charge to
the statement of comprehensive loss to reflect the passage of time and the liability is adjusted to
reflect any changes in the timing of the underlying future cash flows.

Changes to the obligation resulting from any revisions to the timing or amount of the original
estimate of undiscounted cash flows are recognized as an increase or decrease in the
decommissioning provision, and a corresponding change in the carrying amount of the related
long lived asset. Where rehabilitation is conducted systematically over the life of the operation,
rather than at the time of closure, or provision is made for the estimated outstanding continuous
rehabilitation work at each statement of financial position date and the cost is charged to the
statement of operations and comprehensive loss.

The Company has no asset retirement obligations recognized as of September 30, 2016 and 2015.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements

In December 2014, the IASB issued amendments to IAS 1, “Presentation of Financial
Statements” to clarify materiality, order of notes to financial statements, disclosure of accounting
policies as well as aggregation and disaggregation of items presented in the statements of
financial position, statements of income and statements of comprehensive income. The
amendments shall be applied to fiscal years beginning on or after January 1, 2016. On January 1,
2016, the Company early adopted amendments to IAS 1. The adoption has no significant impact
on the Company’s consolidated financial statements for the years presented.

New accounting pronouncements

The following standards and interpretations have not been in effect as they will only be applied
for the first time in future periods. They may result in consequential changes to the accounting
policies and other note disclosures.

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (New)
In July 2014, the IASB issued IFRS 9, Financial Instruments, will replace IAS 39, Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, and some of the requirements of IFRS 7, Financial
Instruments: Disclosures. The objective of IFRS 9 is to establish principles for the financial
reporting of financial assets and financial liabilities that will present relevant and useful
information to users of financial statements for their assessment of the amounts, timing and
uncertainty of an entity’s future cash flows. The IASB has determined the revised effective date
for IFRS 9 will be for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018.

IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows
In February 2016, the IASB issued amendments to IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows. These
amendments require disclosures that enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes in
liabilities arising from financing activities, including both changes arising from cash flow and
non-cash changes. The amendments apply for annual periods beginning on or after January 1,
2017.

IFRS 2 Share-based payment
The IASB issued has published amendments to IFRS 2, Share-based Payment. The new
requirements could affect the classification and/or measurement of cash settled share-based
payments, classification of share-based payments settled net of tax advantage, and share-based
payment from cash-settled to equity settled – and potentially the timing and amount of expense
recognized for new and outstanding awards. The amendments apply for annual periods beginning
on or after January 1, 2018.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Capital Management

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, based on the funds
available to the Company, in order to support the acquisition, exploration and development of
mineral property interests. The Board of Directors does not establish quantitative return on
capital criteria for management, but rather relies on the expertise of the Company’s management
to sustain future development of the business. The Company considers capital to consist of
shareholders’ equity.

The property in which the Company currently has an interest is in the exploration stage; as such
the Company has historically relied on shareholder funding to finance all of its activities. The
Company will continue to assess new properties and seek to acquire an interest in additional
properties if it feels there is sufficient economic potential and if it has adequate financial
resources to do so.

Management reviews its capital management approach on an ongoing basis and believes that this
approach, given the relative size of the Company, is reasonable.

4. REVERSE ACQUISITION

On September 10, 2015, the Company completed the acquisition of 100% of the issued and
outstanding securities of GSG. Although the transaction resulted in GSG becoming a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, the transaction constitutes a reverse takeover of the Company
as the control of the combined companies passed to the former shareholders of GSG. The
transaction has been accounted for as a reverse takeover transaction in accordance with guidance
provided in IFRS 2 Share Based Payment and IFRS 3 Business Combinations. As the Company
did not qualify as a business according to the definition in IFRS 3, this reverse takeover
transaction does not constitute a business combination; rather it is treated as an issuance of shares
by GSG (accounting acquirer) for the net monetary assets of the Company (accounting acquiree)
followed by a recapitalization of GSG.

Since the share consideration to be allocated to the former shareholder of the Company on
closing the transaction is considered within the scope of IFRS 2, and the Company cannot
identify specifically some or all of the goods or service received in return for the allocation of the
shares, the value in excess of the net identifiable assets or obligations of the Company acquired
on closing is to be expensed in the consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss
as listing expense.
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4. REVERSE ACQUISITION (continued)

Further to the reverse takeover transaction, the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended September 30, 2015 reflect the assets, liabilities and results of operations of GSG, the legal
subsidiary, and the Company.

In connection with the transaction, the Company completed a non-brokered private placement of
2,354,167 shares at a price of $0.27 per share for total gross proceeds of $635,625.

In connection with the acquisition, the Company issued 75,000,000 common shares to former
GSG shareholders.

The assets acquired and liabilities assumed are at their fair values which are the same as their
carrying amounts. The net assets of Oriental at fair value on September 10, 2015, are as follows:

*The common share was cancelled during the process of reverse takeover transaction.

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK FACTORS

Financial instruments recorded at fair value

The Company’s financial assets consist of cash and cash equivalents. The estimated fair values of
cash and cash equivalents approximate their respective carrying values due to the short period to
maturity. The Company classifies its fair value measurements within a fair value hierarchy,
which reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the measurements – Financial
Instruments – Disclosures.

For the years ended September 30, 2016 and 2015, the fair value of cash and cash equivalents
were measured using Level 1 inputs.

$
Identifiable Net Assets
Due from Tunshan 6,000
Accounts payable (28,937)
Fair value of net assets acquired (22,937)

Consideration Paid
Fair value of Oriental’s 1 existing common shares
deemed issued by GSG 1
Cancellation of 1 common share* (1)

Costs Attributable to Obtaining a Listing Status
Listing expense 22,937
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK FACTORS (continued)

Financial instruments recorded at fair value (continued)

Level 1 - Unadjusted quoted prices at the measurement date for identical assets or liabilities in
active markets.

Level 2 - Observable inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1, such as quoted
prices for similar assets and liabilities in active markets; quoted prices for identical
or similar assets and liabilities in markets that are not active; or other inputs that are
observable or can be corroborated by observable market data.

Level 3 - Significant unobservable inputs which are supported by little or no market activity.

The fair values of other financial instruments, which include accounts payable and due to
shareholders approximate their carrying values due to the relatively short-term maturity of these
instruments.

Risk factors

The Company has exposure to liquidity risk, market risk, and credit risk from its use of financial
instruments. This note presents information about the Company's exposure to each of these risks,
the Company's objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing risk, and the
Company's management of capital. The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the
establishment and oversight of the Company's risk management framework.

(a) Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as
they fall due. The Company ensures that there is sufficient capital in order to meet short term
business requirements, after taking into account cash flows from operations and the Company's
holdings of cash. The Company's cash and cash equivalents are currently invested in savings
accounts with high-credit quality financial institutions which are available on demand by the
Company for its programs.

The Company’s approach to managing liquidity risk is to ensure that it will have sufficient
liquidity to meet liabilities when due. As at September 30, 2016, the Company had cash and cash
equivalents of $172,348 (September 30, 2015: $699,948), against the total current liabilities of
$127,604 (September 30, 2015: $93,162). The Company ensures that there is sufficient capital in
order to meet short term business requirements, after taking into account cash flows from
operations and the Company’s holdings of cash.

(b) Market risk
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as interest rates, foreign exchange rates
and equity prices will affect the Company’s income or the value of its holdings of financial
instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk
exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimizing the return.
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK FACTORS (continued)

Risk factors (continued)

i. Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company is exposed to short-term
interest rate through the interest earned on cash and cash equivalents; however, management
does not believe this exposure is significant given cash amount is minimum.

ii. Foreign exchange risk
Foreign currency exchange rate risk is the risk that the fair value of financial instruments
or future cash flows will fluctuate as a result of changes in foreign exchange rates. The
Company’s daily operation is carried out in Mongolia and Canada and its functional currency is
Canadian dollar and RMB, which gives rise to foreign currency translation risk from fluctuations
and volatility of foreign exchange rate between the Mongolian Tugrik, Canadian dollar, and the
RMB. To limit the impact of fluctuations of one foreign currency over another, the Company
matches, in general and when possible, the cash receipts in a foreign currency with the cash
disbursements in the same foreign currency. The Company does not use derivative financial
instruments to cover the variability of cash flows in foreign currencies.

(c) Credit risk

Credit risk is the potential risk of loss to the Company if a counterparty to a financial instrument
fails to meet its contractual obligations. The Company’s exposure to credit risk is limited to its
cash and cash equivalents. Management does not believe this exposure is significant given
cash amount is minimum.

6. SEGMENT DISCLOSURE

The Company operates in one reporting segment only, which is the acquisition, exploration and
development of mineral properties. All of the Company's operations are located in Mongolia. As
at September 31, 2016 and 2015, all of the Company’s capital assets are situated in Mongolia.
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7. MINERAL PROPERTY

Kharganii am-1 Molybdenum Property located in the Töv aimag in Mongolia

Through Tunshan, the Company holds mineral exploration license with expiry date of July 31,
2017. The mineral properties are located in Kharganii am-1, Bornuur soum, Tuv aimag,
Mongolia totalling 1,073 hectares. The mineral exploration license fee upto July 31, 2016 has
been paid on time.

Through Tunshan, the Company has also holds mineral mining license with expiry date of
September 5, 2044 covering 42.12 hectares of same areas in the mineral exploration license in
Kharganii am-1, Bornuur soum, Tuv aimag, Mongolia.

As at September 30, 2016 and 2015, the Company had capitalized the following expenditures:

Balance, September 30, 2014 $1,411,978

Geological survey 78,960

Geophysical prospecting 138,180

Other geological work 59,220

Other 27,580

Effect of movements in exchange rates 20,478

Balance, September 30, 2015 1,736,396

Other geological work 33,196

Effect of movements in exchange rates (1,014)

Balance, September 30, 2016 $1,768,577



Oriental Non-ferrous Resources Development Inc.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Years Ended September 30, 2016 and 2015
(Expressed in Canadian Dollars)

19

8. SHARE CAPITAL

Authorized Share Capital

Under the Articles of the Company, the Company is authorized to issue unlimited shares with no
par value.

In the year ended September 30, 2015, the Company completed a non-brokered private
placement of 2,354,167 shares at a price of $0.27 per share for total gross proceeds of $635,625.

In connection with the acquisition of GSG, the Company issued 75,000,000 common shares to
former GSG shareholders.

As at September 30, 2016, the share capital and share reserve of the Company was $691,665 and
$2,400,342, respectively (September 30, 2015: $691,665 and $2,400,342, respectively).

Share Reserve

Additional contribution made by shareholders to support the Company’s daily operation is
recorded as capital contribution over the authorized share capital and has been recognized as share
reserve under shareholders’ equity. For the year ended September 30, 2016, $nil additional
contribution was made by shareholders (For the year ended September 30, 2015: $418,082)

Escrowed Shares

Pursuant to an escrow agreement, 53,250,000 shares are subject to the following escrow release
schedule:

Release Date Escrowed,
beginning of period

Release Escrowed,
end of period

Mar.18, 2016 53,250,000 5,325,000 47,925,000

Sept. 18, 2016 47,925,000 7,987,500 39,937,500

Mar.18, 2017 39,937,500 7,987,500 31,950,000

Sept. 18, 2017 31,950,000 7,987,500 23,962,500

Mar.18, 2018 23,962,500 7,987,500 15,975,000

Sept. 18, 2018 15,975,000 7,987,500 7,987,500

Mar.18, 2019 7,987,500 7,987,500 -
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8. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Stock Options

The fair value of stock options is recognized as share-based compensation accounted for over the
period of the options and the related credit is included in contributed surplus.

On June 13, 2016, the Company adopted a stock option plan (the “Plan”) and granted its directors,
officers and consultants stock options to purchase a total of 5,000,000 common shares of the
Company in accordance with the Plan and subject to the policies of the Canadian Securities
Exchange. The Options are vested upon grant with an exercise price of $0.375 per share and
expire on June 13, 2026.

A summary of changes in the Company’s share purchase options is as follow:

2016

Number of options
Weighted average

exercise price

Balance, beginning of year - $ -

Granted 5,000,000 0.375

Balance, end of year 5,000,000 0.375

Options exercisable at the end of year 5,000,000 0.375

Share-based compensation of $1,864,010 was recognized with the following assumptions used in
calculating the fair value of stock options using the Black-Scholes Option Pricing Model.

2016

Share price at date of grant $0.375

Risk-free interest rate 0.62%

Expected life (in years) 5 years

Expected volatility* 246.0%

Dividend rate 0%

Exercise price at date of grant 0.375

Fair value of options granted at market value $0.372

* Expected volatility is calculated based on comparable companies’ historical volatility.
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9. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the years ended September 30, 2016 and 2015, the Company paid following management
in the form of director and officer fees and share-based compensation:

Year ended September 30,

2016 2015

$ $

Management fees – President 10,238 1,303

Management fees – CFO 79,263 22,508

Directors’ fees 6,938 -

Share-based compensation 1,491,208 -

As at September 30, 2016, the Company owed $2,471 to a shareholder of the Company
(September 30, 2015: $5,386). This amount represented expenses paid by the shareholder on
behalf of the Company.

All transactions with related parties have been in the normal course of operations and were
measured at their exchange amounts established and agreed to by the related parties. Any
amounts due to related parties were unsecured, non-interest bearing and have no specific
repayment terms.

10. INCOME TAX

The following table reconciles the expected income taxes expense (recovery) to the amounts
recognized in the statements of operations at the Canadian statutory income tax rate for the year
ended September 30, 2016, and at the British Virgin Island statutory income tax rate, for the year
ended September 30, 2015:

Years Ended September 30,

2016 2015

Income (Loss) Before Taxes $ (2,382,837) $ (199,582)

Statutory tax rate 26.00% 0.00%

Expected income tax (recovery) (619,538) -
Non-deductible
items 485,564 291

Functional currency adjustments 17,305 (9,878)

Foreign tax rate difference 19,183 (29,472)

Change in deferred tax asset not recognized 97,486 39,059

Total income taxes expense (recovery) $ - $ -
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10. INCOME TAX (continued)

The Company's statutory tax rate change from British Virgin Island statutory income tax rate
(0.00%) to Canadian statutory income tax rate (26.00%), as a result of the completion of reverse
acquisition between Oriental and GSG.

Deferred taxes reflect the tax effects of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax values. Deferred tax assets
(liabilities) at September 30, 2016 and 2015 are comprised of the following:

Years ended September 30,

2016 2015

Non capital loss carryforwards $ 185,387 $ 87,536

Exploration and evaluation assets $ (18) $ (19)

Property and equipment $ 256 $ 621

$ 185,625 $ 88,138

Deferred tax asset not recognized $ 185,625 $ 88,138

Net deferred tax asset (liability) $ - $ -

The Company has non-capital loss carryforwards of approximately $482,122 (2015: $73,023)
which may be carried forward to apply against future year income tax for Canadian income tax
purposes, subject to the final determination by taxation authorities, expiring in 2036.

Canada

2035 $ 73,023

2036 $ 409,099

Total: $ 482,122

The Company has net operating loss carryforwards of approximately $729,805 (2015: $685,500)
which may be carried forward to apply against future year income tax for Mongolian tax
purposes.

Mongolia

2017 $ 150,479

2018 $ 178,626

2019 $ 232,497

2020 $ 123,899

2021 $ 44,304

Total: $ 729,805
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11. SUBSEQUENT EVENT

On December 19, 2016, the Company closed a non-brokered private placement for 250,000
common shares of the Company at a price of $0.80 per Share for gross proceeds of $200,000.
The Shares issued pursuant to the Offering are subject to a four (4) month hold period that
expires on April 20, 2017. Proceeds raised from the sale of the Shares will be used for claim
maintenance fees, general property and geological review.
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FORM 51-102F1 

Management Discussion and Analysis 

Oriental Non-ferrous Resources Development Inc. 

For the year ended September 30, 2016 

Date: January 30, 2017 

Overview 

The following Management’s Discussion and Analysis (“MD&A”) provides relevant information on 

the operations and financial condition of Oriental Non-ferrous Resources Development Inc. (“ONRD” 

or the “Company”) for the year ended September 30, 2016. This MD&A has been prepared as of 

January 30, 2017 and includes information up to that date. 

The following MD&A should be read in conjunction with the Company’s audited consolidated 

financial statements of the Company for the years ended September 30, 2016 and 2015 together with 

the accompanying notes that form part of the statements. The consolidated financial statements and 

the notes therein have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards 

(“IFRSs”). All amounts are expressed in Canadian dollars unless otherwise stated.  Additional 

information may be found on SEDAR at www.sedar.com. 

Forward-Looking Information 

 

The information set forth in this MD&A contains statements concerning future results, future 

performance, intentions, objectives, plans and expectations that are, or may be deemed to be, 

forward-looking statements. These statements concerning possible or assumed future results of 

operations of the Company are preceded by, followed by or include the words ‘believes,’ 

‘expects,’ ‘anticipates,’ ‘estimates,’ ‘intends,’ ‘plans,’ ‘forecasts,’ or similar expressions. 

Forward-looking statements are not guarantees of future performance. These forward-looking 

statements are based on current expectations that involve numerous risks and uncertainties, 

including, but not limited to, those identified in the “Risk Factors” section. Assumptions relating 

to the foregoing involve judgments with respect to, among other things, future economic, 

competitive and market conditions and future business decisions, all of which are difficult or 

impossible to predict accurately and underlie the forward-looking statements as reasonable 

assumptions, any of which could prove inaccurate. These factors should be considered carefully, 

and readers should not place undue reliance on forward-looking statements.  

 

Within this MD&A, the Company has specifically noted the forward-looking nature of 

comments where applicable. Generally, readers should be aware that forward-looking statements 

included or incorporated by reference in this document include statements with respect to:  

 

 The Company’s acquisition strategy, including the basis upon which the Company will 

evaluate acquisition criteria and the benefits associated with an acquisition.  

 The Company’s ability to carry out exploration programs.  

 Expectations regarding the ability to raise capital to fund future working capital requirements.  

 

A number of factors could cause actual events, performance or results, including those in respect 

of the foregoing items, to differ materially from the events, performance and results discussed in 

http://www.sedar.com/
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the forward-looking statements. Factors that could cause actual events, performance or results to 

differ materially from those set forth in the forward-looking statements include, but are not 

limited to:  

 

 the effect of continuing operating losses on the Company’s ability to obtain, on satisfactory 

terms, or at all, the capital required to maintain itself as a going concern;  

 continued negative operating cash flows as the Company continues to expend substantial 

financial resources on exploration and evaluation activities on its Mongolian properties. 

 the risks associated with the increase in operating costs from additional development costs 

and increased staff; 

 the Company’s ability to attract and retain key personnel and key collaborators; and  

 the substantial risks involved in early-stage mining companies related to, among other things, 

exploration, development, and cost containment. 

Although the forward-looking statements contained in this MD&A are based on what we 

consider to be reasonable assumptions based on information currently available to us, there can 

be no assurance that actual events, performance or results will be consistent with these forward-

looking statements, and our assumptions may prove to be incorrect. These forward-looking 

statements are made as of the date of this MD&A. Forward-looking statements made in this 

MD&A are made as of the date of the original document and have not been updated by us except 

as expressly provided for in this MD&A. As required by applicable securities legislation, as a 

reporting issuer, it is the Company's policy to update forward-looking information in its periodic 

management discussions and analyses, as required from time to time, and provide updates on its 

activities to the public through the filing and dissemination of news releases and material change 

reports. 

Description of Business and Overall Performance 

The Company is engaged in the business of acquisition and exploration of mineral resource 

properties. 

The Company was incorporated under the Business Corporations Act of British Columbia on 

August 20, 2015. The head and registered office of the Company is 5148 Williams Road, 

Richmond, British Columbia. 

On September 10, 2015, the Company acquired 100% of Genuine Success Global Limited 

(“GSG”), a company incorporated on May 20, 2014 under the laws of British Virgin Islands, by 

way of share exchange. Pursuant to the share exchange agreement between the Company, GSG 

and the shareholders of GSG, the Company issued 75,000,000 shares of the Company to the 

shareholders of GSG. Mr. Youliang Wang is also a major shareholder of GSG.  

GSG owns 100% of Tunshan Xiangdong Co., Ltd. (“Tunshan”), a Mongolian mineral exploration 

company incorporated on August 31, 2007.  Tushan has acquired mineral exploration license with 

expiry date of July 31, 2017. The mineral properties are located in Kharganii am-1, Bornuur soum, 

Tuv aimag, Mongolia totalling 1,073 hectares.  Tunshan has also acquired mineral mining license 

with expiry date of September 5, 2044 covering 42.12 hectares of same areas in the mineral 

exploration license in Kharganii am-1, Bornuur soum, Tuv aimag, Mongolia. 
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As a junior mineral exploration company, the Company’s core assets are the exploration rights to 

its mineral properties. The Company’s current objective is to seek out and acquire prospective 

mineral exploration properties in Mongolia with the view to exploring and developing the 

properties.  

As at September 30, 2016 and 2015, the Company had no producing properties, and 

consequently no operating income or cash flows from operation. The Company has been 

dependent on shareholder funding to finance all of its activities and it is anticipated that it will 

continue to rely on this source of funding for its exploration expenditures and to meet its ongoing 

working capital requirements. 

In the year ended September 30, 2016, the Company didn’t issue any shares for cash. In the year 

ended September 30, 2016, the Company received $nil (2015: $1,116,083) from financing 

activities. The Company used $484,018 in operating activities in the year ended September 30, 

2016 (2015: $116,041). The Company invested $33,196 in mineral property exploration 

activities in the year ended September 30, 2016 (2015: $303,940). As the Company continued to 

monitor its working capital condition, mineral exploration activities were reduced significantly in 

the year ended September 30, 2016. 

In the opinion of management, all adjustments consisting of normal recurring adjustments, 

considered necessary for a fair presentation of the Company’s financial position, results of 

operations and cash flows, have been included. 

As at September 30, 2016 and 2015, the Company had capitalized the following expenditures: 

    

 Balance, September 30, 2014  $1,411,978  

 Geological survey                    78,960  

 Geophysical prospecting                  138,180  

 Other geological work 59,220 

 Other                    27,580  

 Effect of movements in exchange rates 20,478 

 Balance, September 30, 2015 $1,736,396  

 Other geological work 33,196 

 Effect of movements in exchange rates (1,014) 

Balance, September 30, 2016 $1,768,577  

 

Selected Annual Information 

In CAD$ 
Years Ended September 30, 

2016 2015 

Operating Expenses $(2,382,837) $(199,582) 

Net Loss for the Year $(2,382,837) $(199,582) 

  - Basic and Diluted Earnings (Loss) Per Share $(0.03) $(0.00) 

Total Assets $1,941,282 $2,437,821 
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Results of Operations 

The Company incurred a net loss and comprehensive loss of $2,382,837 and $2,394,991 for the 

year ended September 30, 2016, respectively (2015: net loss and comprehensive loss of $199,582 

and $178,691, respectively). As at September 30, 2016, the Company’s deficit was $3,144,927 

(2015:  $762,090). 

For the year ended September 30, 2016, the Company incurred general and administrative 

expenses of $2,382,837 (2015: $199,582).  

The following is the breakdown of the general and administrative expenses: 

  

  

 

Year Ended September 30, 

  2016 2015 

Expenses $ $ 

Professional fees 330,813 103,471 

Payroll expenses 107,914 32,939 

Share-based payments  1,864,010 - 

Listing expense - 22,937 

Office expenses 28,444 20,963 

Regulatory Filing expenses 19,496 - 

Travel and entertainment 22,564 10,544 

Project expenses 5,780 7,947 

Rent and utilities 3,123 5,593 

Bank fees 825 340 

Foreign exchange gain (132) (5,152) 

Total 2,382,837 199,582 

 

As the Company had been seeking a listing on Canadian Securities Exchange (the “Exchange”), 

the Company incurred professional fees of $330,813 in the year ended September 30, 2016 (2015: 

$103,471). As a public company, the Company incurred additional payroll expenses of $74,975 

paid to directors and senior management comparing to the year ended September 30, 2015. 

 

The share-based payment of $1,864,010 (2015: $nil) is a non-cash item. It represents the fair 

market value of options granted directors and officers of the Company. 

 

The listing expense of $22,937 incurred in the year ended September 30, 2015 represented of the 

fair values of the net assets of the Company on September 10, 2015 as the Company completed 

the acquisition of GSG. 

 

For the year ended September 30, 2016, the Company incurred office expenses of $28,444 (2015: 

$20,963). Office expenses increased slightly from to as the Company incurred more expenses 

being a public company. 

 



 

5 

For the year ended September 30, 2016, the Company incurred regulatory filing expenses of 

$19,496 (2015: $nil). This amount represents amount paid to the Exchange and the Company’s 

transfer agent. 

 

For the year ended September 30, 2016, the Company incurred travel and entertainment 

expenses of $22,564 (2015: $10,544).  The increase was due to meetings with shareholders and 

investors of the Company. 

 

Summary of Quarterly Results 

The following is a summary of selected financial data for the Company for the eight most recently 

completed quarters. 

     
  For the quarters ended 

  
September 30, 

2016 

June 30, 

2016 

March 31, 

2016 

December 31, 

2015 

Net loss $45,906 $2,022,763 $197,655 $116,513 

Basic and diluted loss per share $(0.00) $(0.03) $(0.00) $(0.00) 

Weighted average number of common     

shares outstanding - basic and diluted 77,354,167 77,354,167 77,354,167 77,354,167 

     
  For the quarters ended 

  
September 30, 

2015 

June 30, 

2015 

March 31, 

2015 

December 31, 

2014 

Net loss $93,769 $75,579 $7,134 $23,100 

Basic and diluted loss per share $(0.00) $(0.00) $(0.00) $(0.00) 

Weighted average number of common     

shares outstanding - basic and diluted 75,204,710 75,000,000 75,000,000 75,000,000 

As the Company had been seeking a listing on the Exchange, the Company incurred additional 

expenses including professional fees in the quarters ended March 31, 2016, December 31, 2015, 

and September 30, 2015. 

The significant loss incurred in the quarter ended June 30, 2016 was due to the recognition of 

share-based payment of $1,864,010, which is the fair market value of options granted to directors 

and officers of the Company. The share-based payment is a one-time non-cash item. 

The Company has no dividend policy and has no intention of developing a dividend policy in the 

foreseeable future. The Company has paid no dividends and has no retained earnings from which 

it might pay dividends. 

Liquidity 

As at September 30, 2016, the Company had working capital of $45,101 (2015: $608,263).  

In the year ended September 30, 2016, the Company didn’t issue any shares for cash. In the year 

ended September 30, 2015, the Company received $1,116,083 from share capital contribution 
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and private placement. The Company used $484,108 in operating activities in the year ended 

September 30, 2016 (2015: $116,041). The Company invested $33,196 in mineral property 

exploration activities in the year ended September 30, 2016 (2015: $303,940). As the Company 

continued to monitor its working capital condition, mineral exploration activities were reduced 

significantly in the year ended September 30, 2016. 

 

Other than the mineral property claims, the Company does not currently hold an interest in any 

other business nor does it have an interest in any fixed assets, directly or indirectly. The 

Company’s activities have been funded through equity financing and the Company expects it 

will continue to be able to utilize this source of financing until it develops cash flow from future 

operations. 

 

There can be no assurance that the Company will be successful in its endeavors. If such funds are 

not available or other sources of finance cannot be obtained, then the Company will be forced to 

curtail its activities to a level for which funding is available and can be obtained. 

Financial Instruments 

All financial assets are initially recorded at fair value and classified into one of four categories: 

held to maturity, available for sale, loans and receivable or at fair value through profit or loss 

(“FVTPL”). All financial liabilities are initially recorded at fair value and classified as either 

FVTPL or other financial liabilities. Financial instruments comprise cash, accounts payable, and 

due to shareholders. At initial recognition management has classified financial assets and 

liabilities as follows: 

 

i) Financial assets 

The Company has recognized its cash at FVTPL. A financial instrument is classified at FVTPL if 

it is held for trading or is designated as such upon initial recognition. Financial instruments are 

designated at FVTPL if the Company manages such investments and makes purchase and sale 

decisions based on their fair value in accordance with Company’s documented risk management 

or investment strategy. Financial instruments FVTPL are measured at fair value and changes 

therein are recognized in income. 

 

ii) Financial liabilities 

The Company has recognized its accounts payable and due to shareholders as other financial 

liabilities and is initially recorded at fair value and subsequently measured at amortization costs 

by using the effective interest method.  The Company derecognizes a financial liability when its 

contractual obligations are discharged, cancelled or expired. 

 

Financial instruments recorded at fair value 

The Company’s financial assets consist of cash and cash equivalents. The estimated fair values 

of cash and cash equivalents approximate their respective carrying values due to the short period 

to maturity. The Company classifies its fair value measurements within a fair value hierarchy, 

which reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the measurements – Financial 

Instruments – Disclosures. 

 

For the years ended September 30, 2016 and 2015, the fair value of cash and cash equivalents 

were measured using Level 1 inputs. 
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Level 1 - Unadjusted quoted prices at the measurement date for identical assets or liabilities in 

active markets. 

Level 2 - Observable inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1, such as quoted prices 

for similar assets and liabilities in active markets; quoted prices for identical or similar 

assets and liabilities in markets that are not active; or other inputs that are observable 

or can be corroborated by observable market data. 

Level 3 - Significant unobservable inputs which are supported by little or no market activity. 

The fair values of other financial instruments, which include accounts payable and due to 

shareholders approximate their carrying values due to the relatively short-term maturity of these 

instruments.. 

 

Capital Resources 

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, based on the funds 

available to the Company, in order to support the acquisition, exploration and development of 

mineral property interests.  The Board of Directors does not establish quantitative return on 

capital criteria for management, but rather relies on the expertise of the Company’s management 

to sustain future development of the business. The Company considers capital to consist of 

shareholders’ equity. 

The property in which the Company currently has an interest is in the exploration stage; as such 

the Company has historically relied on the equity markets to fund its activities. The Company 

will continue to assess new properties and seek to acquire an interest in additional properties if it 

feels there is sufficient economic potential and if it has adequate financial resources to do so.  

Management reviews its capital management approach on an ongoing basis and believes that this 

approach, given the relative size of the Company, is reasonable. 

Related Party Transactions 

 

During the years ended September 30, 2016 and 2015, the Company paid following management 

in the form of director and officer fees and share-based compensation to the key management of 

the Company.  

  

 

 Year ended September 30, 

  2016 2015 

 $ $ 

Management fees – President 10,238 1,303 

Management fees – CFO 79,263 22,508 

Directors’ fees 6,938 - 

Share-based compensation 1,491,208 - 

 

As at September 30, 2016, the Company owed $2,471 (2015: $5,386) to shareholders of the 

Company. This amount represented expenses paid by certain shareholders of the Company. 
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All transactions with related parties have been in the normal course of operations and were 

measured at their exchange amounts established and agreed to by the related parties. Any 

amounts due to related parties were unsecured, non-interest bearing and have no specific 

repayment terms. 

Commitments and Contractual Obligations 

The Company has no commitments and contractual obligations. 

Subsequent Event 

On December 19, 2016, the Company closed a non-brokered private placement for 250,000 

common shares of the Company at a price of $0.80 per Share for gross proceeds of $200,000. 

The Shares issued pursuant to the Offering are subject to a four (4) month hold period that 

expires on April 20, 2017. Proceeds raised from the sale of the Shares will be used for claim 

maintenance fees, general property and geological review. 

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements 

The Company has no off-balance sheet agreements. 

Fourth Quarter  

In the fourth quarter ended September 30, 2016, the Company incurred net loss of $45,906 

attributed to operating activities. The net loss incurred in the fourth quarter was lower than 

previous quarters as the Company incurred share-based payment in the quarter ended June 30, 

2016 and additional professional fees in connection with its regulatory reporting obligations as a 

public issuer in the process of seeking a listing on the Exchange in the quarters ended December 

31, 2015 and March 31, 2016. 

Recent Accounting Pronouncements 

The following standards and interpretations have not been in effect as they will only be applied 

for the first time in future periods.  They may result in consequential changes to the accounting 

policies and other note disclosures.  

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (new) 

In July 2014, the IASB issued IFRS 9, Financial Instruments, will replace IAS 39, Financial 

Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, and some of the requirements of IFRS 7, Financial 

Instruments: Disclosures. The objective of IFRS 9 is to establish principles for the financial 

reporting of financial assets and financial liabilities that will present relevant and useful 

information to users of financial statements for their assessment of the amounts, timing and 

uncertainty of an entity’s future cash flows. The IASB has determined the revised effective date 

for IFRS 9 will be for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018. 
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IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows 

In February 2016, the IASB issued amendments to IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows. These amendments 

require disclosures that enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from 

financing activities, including both changes arising from cash flow and non-cash changes. The 

amendments apply for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2017.  

IFRS 2 Share-based payment 

The IASB issued has published amendments to IFRS 2, Share-based Payment. The new requirements 

could affect the classification and/or measurement of cash settled share-based payments, classification of 

share-based payments settled net of tax advantage, and share-based payment from cash-settled to equity 

settled – and potentially the timing and amount of expense recognized for new and outstanding awards. 

The amendments apply for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018.  

Other MD&A Requirements: 

Outstanding Share Data 

Under the Articles of the Company, the Company is authorized to issue unlimited shares with no 

par value. 

On September 10, 2015, in connection with the acquisition of GSG, the Company issued 

75,000,000 common shares to former GSG shareholders. 

In the period ended September 30, 2015, the Company completed a non-brokered private 

placement of 2,354,167 shares at a price of $0.27 per share for total gross proceeds of $635,625. 

As at September 30, 2016 and 2015, the share capital and share reserve of the Company was 

$691,665 and $2,400,342, respectively.  

As at the date of this MD&A and September 30, 2016, the Company had 5,000,000 stock options 

outstanding and exercisable. 

Control and Procedures 

Venture issuers are not required to establish or maintain disclosure controls and procedures 

(DC&P) and internal control over financial reporting (ICFR). The Company is not required to 

certify the design and evaluation of its DC&P and ICFR and has not completed such an 

evaluation. The inherent limitations on the ability of the certifying officers to design and 

implement, on a cost-effective basis, DC&P and ICFR for the Company may result in additional 

risks to the quality, reliability, transparency and timeliness of interim and annual filings and 

other reports provided under securities legislation. 

As indicative of many small companies, the lack of segregation of duties and effective risk 

assessment were areas where weaknesses existed. The existence of these weaknesses is to be 

compensated for by senior management monitoring, which exists. The officers will continue to 

monitor very closely all financial activities of the Company and increase the level of supervision 

in key areas. It is important to note that this issue would also require the Company to hire 

additional staff in order to provide greater segregation of duties. Since the increased costs of such 
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hiring could threaten the Company’s financial viability, management has chosen to disclose the 

potential risk in its filings and proceed with increased staffing only when the budgets and work 

load will enable the action. The Company has attempted to mitigate these weaknesses, through a 

combination of extensive and detailed review by the CFO of the financial reports, the integrity 

and reputation of senior accounting personnel, and candid discussion of those risks with the audit 

committee. 

Risks and Uncertainties 

The Company is engaged in the exploration for and development of mineral deposits.  These 

activities involve significant risks which careful evaluation, experience and knowledge may not, 

in some cases, eliminate. The commercial viability of any material deposit depends on many 

factors not all of which are within the control of management.  Some of the factors that affect the 

financial viability of a given mineral deposit include its size, grade, proximity to infrastructure.  

Government regulation, taxes, royalties, land tenure, land use, environmental protection and 

reclamation and closure obligations, have an impact on the economic viability of a mineral 

deposit. 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make 

estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure 

of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported 

amounts revenues and expenses during the reporting period.  Actual results could differ from 

those estimates. 

Annual losses are expected to continue until the Company has an interest in an exploration and 

evaluation property that produces revenues.  The Company’s ability to continue its operations 

and to realize assets at their carrying values is dependent upon the continued support of its 

shareholders, obtaining additional financing and generating revenues sufficient to cover its 

operating costs.  The Company’s accompanying financial statements do not give effect to any 

adjustments which would be necessary should the Company be unable to continue a going 

concern and therefore be required to realize its assets and discharge its liabilities in other than the 

normal course of business and at amounts different from those reflected in the accompanying 

financial statements. 

Any forward-looking information in this MD&A is based on the conclusions of management.  

The Company cautions that due to risks and uncertainties, actual events may differ materially 

from current expectations.  With respect to the Company’s operations, actual events may differ 

from current expectations due to economic conditions, new opportunities, changing budget 

priorities of the Company and other factors. 

Outlook 

The Company’s primary focus for the foreseeable future will be on reviewing its financial 

position, continuing exploration activities on its mineral property and financing new business 

ventures in the mineral resource industry.  

Approval  

The board of directors of the Company has approved the disclosure contained in this MD&A. 
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Additional Information 

Additional disclosure of the Company’s technical reports, material change reports, news release 

and other information can be obtained on SEDAR at www.sedar.com.  

http://www.sedar.com/


 

SCHEDULE "C" 

CERTIFICATE OF THE ISSUER 

Pursuant to a resolution duly passed by its Board of Directors, Oriental Non-Ferrous Resources 

Development Inc. (the “Issuer”), hereby applies for the listing of the above mentioned securities 

on CSE.  The foregoing contains full, true and plain disclosure of all material information 

relating to the Issuer.  It contains no untrue statement of a material fact and does not omit to state 

a material fact that is required to be stated or that is necessary to prevent a statement that is made 

from being false or misleading in light of the circumstances in which it was made. 

Dated at Vancouver, British Columbia this 30th day of January, 2017. 

 

"Eugene Beukman"  "Sam Wang" 

Eugene Beukman  Sam Wang 

Chief Executive Officer, President, Chairman  Chief Financial Officer, Secretary, Director 

   

"Youliang Wang"  "Paul Chung" 

Youliang Wang  Paul Chung 

Director  Director 

   

   

 


